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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBHE
RESULTS
ES
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET BT FET
Revenue Wezs 907,473 806,713 674,197 603,736 489,853
Gross profit EH 163,652 214,711 184,899 185,578 144,984
Profit for the year FRER 12,883 92,706 90,076 99,121 932206
Profit attributable to: T EEEGRF
Equity holders of the Company AREERRAA 13,117 93,050 89,943 97,305 92,150
Non-controlling interests TR (234) (344) 133 1816 1,056
12,883 92,706 90,076 99,121 93,206
Total Assets BEE 429,087 438964 344,794 214612 227,200
Total Liabilities oY=l 369,542 138,826 103,513 98,775 110,324
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On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of ASR Logistics
Holdings for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

Despite the challenging market conditions for the air cargo industry during the year, ASR
Logistics Holdings continued to execute its long-term growth strategy. The number of
airline and integrated carrier appointments with the Group have increased from more
than 50 to more than 55, and our office locations from 29 to 37, and correspondingly,
staff count has climbed from 231 to 258. In 2014, marked the seventh consecutive year
that we have achieved revenue growth, which reached HK$907.5 million or a rise of

12.5% over the previous year.

OUTLOOK FOR 2015

Looking ahead to 2015, the overall air cargo business environment will remain challenging.

Over-capacity will continue to be a major issue.

In view of the rising operating costs, the Group will implement further cost control
measures such as consolidating our offices and reducing headcounts, reducing marketing,

promotional and all non-revenue direct driven expenditures activities.

Notwithstanding the difficutt market environment in the air cargo industry on wholesaling
and reselling, over-capacity in air cargo and the rising costs in labor, offices and other
operating costs associated with added business volume, the management will maintain our
commitment to grow our core business and concurrently explore new revenue streams

with optimized operating costs, to bloom the profitability of the Group.

I'would like to take this opportunity to extend my gratitude to the entire workforce,
without whom ASR Logistics Holdings would not be able to succeed. Our staff are
our most valuable asset and the main reason why ASR Logistics Holdings has achieved
seventh consecutive years of revenue growth. | wish also to thank the Board of Directors,
management and business partners for their tireless efforts to help turming our plans into a

successfull reality.

Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR D

OVERVIEW

The Group has reported an attributable profit of HK$13.1 million for the year ended 3|
December 2014 (2013: HK$93.1 million). In 2014, volume of cargo handled increased
to 69,184 tons (2013: 53,058 tons), revenue rose by 12.5% to HK$907.5 million (2013:
HK$806.7 million) and gross profit was HK$163.7 million (2013: HK$214.7 million) with
gross profit margin at 18.0% (2013: 26.6%).

During the year, the Board of Directors has declared an interim dividend of HK$0.007 per
share (2013: HK$0.028) and a special dividend of HK$0.15 per share (2013: HK$0.15).
This represents a total dividend for the year of HK$0.157 per share and represents a
total distribution for the year of HK$126.6 million. The Board does not recommend the
payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Despite the challenging business environment, revenue of the Group still managed to
grow with its added capacity and expanded business network. As at 31 December 2014,
the number of airline and integrated carrier appointments with the Group increased to
more than 55 (2013: 50), and the number of office locations increased to 37 in total (2013:
29). However, over-capacity in the air cargo market continues to put downward pressure
on yield performance. While the revenue of the Group increased, there was decrease in
profit of our Group for the year of 2014 as compared to the year of 2013 mainly due to
the decrease in gross profit of the Group, and increase in administrative costs attributable
to the Group's expansion of business, sales and service network including staff costs which
rose to HK$84.9 million (2013: HK$60.7 million), office rentals increased to HK$11.7
million (2013: HK$8.0 million), marketing, promotion and travelling expenses increased to
HKS$16.4 million (2013: HK$15.2 million).

Notwithstanding the failure to comply with the restrictive financial covenant requirement
of certain banking facilities as mentioned in note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company has not received any notice from the banks that they will cancel,
terminate, reduce or not renew the existing banking facilities. Further, the Company has
not received any request from the banks for immediate repayment of the outstanding

borrowings.

6 ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ &% 7R RER AT

BB
AEEREZE04FNA3BLFEHR
ARAERBFAABEENAIIBESET
(013F:93. BBATL) A5EEMER
BR20144 5 A1 Z 69,1848 (20134 : 53,058
ME) - Wezs 18 R 125%Z 90758 & 8 (2013
F:8067HEBBIT) EMNRIGBTIAEET
(013F 2147EBBT)RENEHI180%
(2013 : 26.6%) °

FR-EZEERTHREFR0007E T
(2013 : 00288 7L ) REFHIREBARO.I5E
TL(2013F :0.158L) FERELER
BROISTETRFERNEER 1266 A 8B
Lo EFEIREREHZ14F12A31H
EEERBRE -

BELCHREABESE  FAEERRREES
REREBREMKNERREIER - 72014
F12A31 8 AEENMZE QR REEGRE
AZRAHEEES5FKIAL(Q013F:50K)
MEWHHEEAEMEITEQ0IZF : 29
[B) e AT MEEEMGRLBTNERK
E HUKRATRTIEN - BEXEEN
hEEE AEEWI4FEGEABR203F
BFTRE  FERARKIEEERNTERRER
CEBREL HERRBB/EMERTR
RALA  BEEEKARLAZITERT
(013F : 607BBBL) MAEHEL EAZ
H7BEBITQI3F  80FEBT) REH
BEERERAI EAZ 1648 8B (003
FS2EEET)

=

BE MG BmAMNE (it -
FETRITEEZRHIABRERT -
WAEBRTEHEMRA - SEUE - &
BURS A EERARITEE « B4 AAF
AEERTELEMNESR  BMREERE
Mo

K
LY

DRSS
el

;;_

h
&



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the opinion of the Director, the Group will have sufficient financial resources to finance
its operations and to fulfill its bank guarantee requirements and financial obligations as and

when they fall due in the coming twelve months from the date of the balance sheet.

CHANGE IN CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Immediately after completion of the acquisition of Shares pursuant to a share purchase
agreement dated |0 December 2014, on 12 January 2015, Hollyview International
Limited, Excellent Success Asia Limited, Mass Talent Financial Limited and Mr. Sang
Kanggiao (collectively the “Joint Offerors”) became interested in an aggregate of
560,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 69.4% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company. Accordingly, Changjiang Corporate Finance (HK) Limited, on behalf of
the Joint Offerors, made unconditional mandatory cash offers (the “Offers”) for all the
issued Shares not already owned and/or agreed to be acquired by the Joint Offerors and/
or parties acting in concert with them and cancellation of all outstanding options of the
Company. The composite document (the “Composite Document”) on the Offers was

despatched to the Shareholders on |6 March 2015.

Details of above were disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 24 December

2014 and composite document dated |6 March 2015.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2015, the overall air cargo business environment will remain challenging.

Over-capacity will continue to be a major issue.

In view of the rising operating costs, the Group will implement further cost control
measures such as consolidating our offices and reducing headcounts, reducing marketing,

promotional and all non-revenue direct driven expenditures activities.

Notwithstanding the difficult market environment in the air cargo industry on wholesaling
and reselling, over-capacity in air cargo and the rising costs in labor, offices and other
operating costs associated with added business volume, the management will maintain our
commitment to grow our core business and concurrently explore new revenue streams

with optimized operating costs, to bloom the profitability of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR D

REVENUE

The Group's revenue amounted to approximately HK$907.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2014, representing an increase of approximately 12.5% when compared
with last year. This was due to an increase in air cargo handled by the Group, rising from

53,058 tons for the year ended 31 December 2013 to 69,184 tons for this year.

REVENUE FOR THE REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

Revenue derived from flight destinations in the Asia-Pacific region increased by
approximately HK$ | 13.3 million or 22.4% to approximately HK$619.7 million for the year
2014 (2013: approximately HK$506.4 million). The increase in revenue was primarily due
to our Group's continued focus on providing air cargo services covering the destinations
in Asian countries and entering into new purchasing arrangements with airlines/integrated

carriers.

Revenue derived from flight destinations in Europe decreased by approximately
HK$14.5 million or 11.7% to approximately HK$109.9 million for the year 2014 (2013:
approximately HK$124.4 million). The decrease in revenue in this region was primarily
due to the decrease in air cargo handled by the Group for shipments to Europe during

the year.

Revenue derived from flight destinations in America decreased by approximately HK$4.6
million or 5.6% to approximately HK$78.0 million for the year 2014 (2013: approximately
HK$82.6 million). The decrease in revenue in this region was primarily due to the decrease
in air cargo handled by the Group during the year, which also included the destination in

America.

Revenue derived from flight destinations in Africa increased by approximately HK$6.7
million or 7.2% to approximately HK$100.0 million for the year 2014 (2013: approximately
HK$93.3 million). The increase in revenue in this region was primarily due to the increase
in air cargo handled by the Group during the year, which also included the destinations in
Africa.

GROSS PROFIT

Overall gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 23.8% from approximately
HK$214.7 million for the year ended 3| December 2013 to approximately HK$163.7
million for this year, and overall gross profit margin decreased from approximately 26.6%
to approximately 18.0% respectively. The contractions were due to excess capacity

available on the market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GROSS PROFIT FOR THE REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in the Asia-Pacific region decreased by
approximately 27.7% from approximately HK$187.4 million in 2013 to approximately
HK$135.4 million in 2014, which was primarily attributable to the excess capacity available

on the market.

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in Europe decreased by approximately 12.4%
from approximately HK$ 1.3 million in 2013 to approximately HK$9.9 million in 2014,
which was primarily attributable to the lower-than-expected profit growth in providing the

Group's air cargo services covering the destinations in Europe.

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in America for the year ended 31 December

2014 was approximately HK$3.9 million (2013: HK$3.9 million).

Gross profit derived from flight destinations in Africa increased by approximately 18.0%
from approximately HK$12.2 million in 2013 to approximately HK$14.4 million in 2014,
which was primarily attributable to the profit growth in providing the Group's air cargo

services covering the destinations in Africa.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's administrative expenses amounted
to approximately HK$137.9 million (2013: approximately HK$102.8 million), representing
an increase of approximately 34.1% when compared with last year, which accounted for
approximately 15.2% of the Group's turnover (2013: approximately 12.7%). The increase
in administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase in number of employees, more

sales and promotion activities and expansion of Group's network.

INCOME TAX

Income tax mainly represents the tax expenses incurred in relation to the operations of

the Group in the PRC, Macau and Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR D

PROFITABILITY

In 2014, the Group's profit attributable to equity holders amounted to approximately
HKS$13.1 million (2013: approximately HK$93.1 million), representing an decrease
of approximately 85.9% as compared to 2013. The contractions were due to excess
capacity available on the market. Margin of profit attributable to equity holders for the
year was approximately 1.4% (2013: approximately |1.5%), representing a decrease of

approximately 10.1 percentage points as compared to 201 3.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's retum on equity was approximately
22.9% (2013: approximately 31.1%), which is calculated as profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company divided by equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company, representing a decrease of approximately 8.2 percentage points as compared
to 2013. The Group's relatively lower return on equity recorded was a result of the

decrease in profit attributable to equity holder of the Company as compared to 201 3.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group's trade receivables (net) increased by around 9.0% from approximately
HK$133.6 million as at 31 December 2013 to approximately HK$145.6 million as at 31
December 2014. The increase in trade receivables was mainly due to the increase in
revenue. The average trade receivables turnover days increased from 54 days in 2013 to

56 days in 2014.

The Group's policy in respect of allowance for doubtful debts for 2014 was the same as
that for 2013. Our Group did not make any general allowance for doubtful debts and no
specific allowance for doubtful debts was considered necessary and provided for 2014
(2013: nil). For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had no bad debts written-
off (2013: HK$0.2 million).

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group's trade payables primarily relate to the credit term provided by airlines. The
Group's trade payables increased by around 86.9% from approximately HK$89.6 million as
at 31 December 2013 to approximately HK$167.5 million as at 31 December 2014. The
average trade payables tumnover days increased from 49 days in 2013 to 63 days in 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER PAYABLES

Other payables mainly represent (i) payroll and staff benefits payable; (i) accrued
expenses for utilities; and (iii) deposits received. The balance of other payables increased
by approximately 21.2% to approximately HK$38.9 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
approximately HK$32.1 million) mainly due to an increase in operating expenses as a

result of the Group's business growth.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group's net cash inflow from operating activities for the year 2014 amounted
to approximately HK$98.1 million (2013: approximately HK$102.4 million). As at 31
December 2014, cash and cash equivalents including bank overdraft amounted to
approximately HK$227.9 million, representing a net decrease of approximately HK$24.6
million as compared with the position as at 31 December 2013. The decrease was mainly

due to the increase in cash outflows from financing activities.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had an un-utilised bank facilities of approximately
HK$115.9 million (2013: approximately HK$78.5 million). During the year 2013 and 2014,
the Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2014, the
gearing ratio, which was calculated by dividing total bank borrowings over total assets, was

7.8% (2013 0%).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had current assets of approximately HK$396.6
million (2013: approximately HK$421.9 million) and current liabilities of approximately
HK$368.6 million (2013: approximately HK$137.3 million). The current ratio (which is
calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities) was approximately 1.1 (2013:

approximately 3.1).

BEEENWR DN

Hh (T 7IE

HttERNRBEER: () IERENELIR
By KEREAEBR  ARG)BEWRERE - B
014F 12A318 R EFAFIBEREMND
212%ZH38IBEBIT(2013F - Y9321 B S
BL) FERRAEEERERLEERTIL
e

RBES  MBERREREHE

R14F  AEBNRLEHRERAFE
B4 I EBBTQ03F: 10246 8%
TU) e R2014F 12831 B BeERREEEY
(BRERITEX)ABH2NIIBES T 82013
FNANBHRRARD FEH246BE B
o RPETERARMEESRSRLEM -

R014E 128318 REBRABARITE
EQI59B BB L(013F: H)785F B &
L) M20I3FER2014F - AEETEE FH
FTESAFERR - R2014F 128315 &
ABELER(ARTEREERINBEEHEM
) A7.8%(2013%F 1 0%) °

RNI4F12A318 AEEHEERBEEN
3966 BEET(013F : NN19BEBET) R
mE B EH368.6 8 EHET(20I13F : 41373
BEEBIT) - RBLEAURBEERINRE
BEFTE)N1(Q013F : §33.1)

Annual Report £ & 2014 1 1



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmR D

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net current assets of approximately HK$28.0
million. The key components of current assets as at 31 December 2014 included cash and
cash equivalents of approximately HK$228.8 million, pledged deposits of approximately
HK$7.0 million, trade receivables of approximately HK$145.6 million, and prepayments,
deposits and other receivables of approximately HK$12.1 million. The key components
of current liabilities included trade payables of approximately HK$167.5 million, dividend
payable of approximately HK$121.0 million, income tax payable of approximately HK$7.5
million, borrowings of approximately HK$33.6 million and other payables and accruals of

approximately HK$38.9 million.

The net current assets decreased from approximately HK$284.5 million as at 31
December 2013 to approximately HK$28.0 million as at 31 December 2014 which
primarily represents the increase in trade payables, borrowings and dividend paid and

payable when compared with 2013.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND GUARANTEES

The Group had an un-utilised bank facility of approximately HK$115.9 million as at 31
December 2014 and the facility was secured by the pledged deposits of approximately
HK$7.0 million of our Group and life insurance policies covering the three executive
Directors of the Company. Certain airlines and integrated carriers would require their air
cargo wholesalers to deliver bank guarantees before their appointment. The aggregate
guarantee amount provided was approximately HK$80.| million as at 31 December 2014
(2013: approximately HK$70.5 million). Saved as disclosed above, we had no material

contingent liabilities and guarantees.

CONTRACTUAL AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$13.7 million (2013: approximately HK$19.6 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to RMB and US$. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities. During the year 2014, the Group
had not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the exposure, after netting off the
assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk, is not very significant. However, our
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

HUMAN RESOURCES
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 258 full-time employees (2013: 231). The

Group reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees annually according to the
relevant market practice and individual performance of the employees. Save for the social
insurance in China and the mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong, the Group
has not set aside or accrued any significant amount of money to provide for retirement
or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs incurred for the year ended 31
December 2014 were approximately HK$84.9 million (2013: approximately HK$60.7

million).

USE OF NET PROCEEDS RECEIVED FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The Shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
16 January 2012. The net proceeds received from the initial public offering were
approximately HK$65.0 million. Such net proceeds were deposited at the Group's bank
account and are intended to be and have been applied in the manner consistent with that
mentioned in the section headed “Future plans and proposed use of proceeds” of the
Prospectus. In the event that the Directors decide to use such net proceeds in a manner
different from that stated in the Prospectus, the Company will issue an announcement in

compliance with the Listing Rules.

BEEENWR DN

SNERE
AEEERRESRERRRNIMNERR - T
EERARBRET - SNERBIKE RREF
X5 BHEIABEREE - R2014F  ~5E
WARERESMNERK - Tys RGBS R IMER,
BOEERABRRABRAERL FFRERX
A AANERESERIMNERR - YNF
EREZELNEAIMNERR

ADER

ROI4E 128318 AEEHEL8E 2K
EBE(0I13F :231%) - AEEREBEEHET IS
BRREEEARREERITEEENTIR
B o R BEmMLR LB BRI R EERTE
Oy AEBTEBES R EMEATIBERE
EEHRKRIBUGTFRER - BE2014F
A BEEFEEENBINANARS4IAE
BIL(Q013F - K607 HEBT) °

BERAHBERSRERENAR

BHR22FIAI6BEBIAERKN L
Mo BRAREEMBREFENAGIER
BT - ZREMBHBEFEFALREENRTE
Pk B RIERRER A KRR I REZE
BRERTRL]-HMinAER - ESE
REABRIRBRERMIIN A X BBZHAE
HIEFE  AORIKEER ETARRITIRAM

Annual Report £ & 2014 1 3



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is an air freight solution provider positioned in the wholesale market. The
Group principally involves purchasing air cargo space from airlines and/or integrated
carriers and on-selling such space to our customers, namely freight forwarders. Airlines
and integrated carriers generally engage their respective appointed wholesalers and freight
forwarders to market and/or on-sell their air cargo space for ease of management, cost
effectiveness and minimizing credit exposure instead of dealing with a large pool of freight
forwarders and shippers themselves. The Group's main role for airlines and integrated
carriers is to source a necessary amount of air cargos from freight forwarders on a timely

basis to enable them to maximise the utilisation of air cargo space of their aircrafts.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 are set out in Note 7

to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 50 to 51 of this annual

report.

The interim dividend of HKO.7 cents (2013: HK2.8 cents) per share was paid during the
year. The special dividend of HKI5 cents (2013: HKI5 cents) per share was declared
during the year. The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend in
respect of current year to the Shareholders. Details of the dividends are set out in Note

29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, distributable reserves of the Company amounted to HK$10.7
million (2013: HK$162.3 million). Details of movements in reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to the consolidated

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major customers and suppliers

respectively in the financial year were as follows:
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Year ended 3| December

BENANALEE

2014 2013

% of total % of total

turnover turmover

EREXEN  HRERED

Bk B

The largest customer BARF 4.7% 3.6%
Five largest customers hREF 14.7% 11.4%
% of total % of total

purchase purchase

LB HEREDN

B B

The largest supplier RAMIER 15.6% 16.6%
Five largest suppliers TR RER 50.6% 50.3%

All of the above five largest customers and suppliers of the Group are independent third
parties. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their associates or
any Shareholder holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company, has

any interest in any of the Group's five largest customers and suppliers as disclosed above.

AEELARREPRHEREOABUE=
o BESMAN BEES  HBEARE
ARAARREHEITIRA YA LMRRR Lt
RENASEENAARE REEATES T
fa sk o

Annual Report £ & 2014 1 5



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014, the Group did not have long-
term bank loans. As at 31 December 2014, the Group have short term borrowings of

approximately HK$33.6 million (2013 nil).

As at 31 December 2014, the finance lease liabilities of the Group were approximately

HK$0.2 million (201 3: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the year are

set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

ORDINARY SHARES

Details of movements in ordinary shares of the Company during the year are set out in

Note |3 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years

is set out on page 4 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles of association

or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's shares for the year

ended 3| December 2014,
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are as

follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wei Jin Cai

Dr. Zhang Xianlin

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 36 to

44 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (*AGM") has an unexpired service contract with any member of the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

financial year under review or at any time during the financial year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's business at any time during the year ended 31 December

2014 and up to and including the date of this annual report.

PENSION SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly basis for its
employees. The Group has no further obligation for payment of post-retirement benefits

to employees beyond the aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and are under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and its employees
are required to contribute 5% of the employees' monthly salaries. The mandatory
contributions required to be made respectively by the Group and an employee are each
capped at HK$ 1,500 commenced from | June 2014. Members are entitled to 100% of the
employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme but all
benefits derived from the mandatory contributions must be preserved until an employee

reaches the retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year ended 31 December 2014,
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at the date of this report, the interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model

Code") contained in the Listing Rules, are as follows:
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LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES R B R
Number of
Ordinary Shares Percentage
Director B= Nature of Interest EENtE EERHE BOt
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny REREE Corporate NG| 40,000,000 496%
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard EEMEE Corporate yNC] 40,000,000 4.96%
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BEREE Corporate NG| 40,000,000 496%

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

REBEZENROREBRONER

Name of Associated

Corporation Percentage
Director o HEEZEE B BOt
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny REREE ASR Victory 33.3%
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BERE ASR Victory 33.3%
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BiERESE ASR Victory 333%

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not hold any short positions in shares,

underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives or any of their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations which had been recorded in the register required

to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO as at the date of this report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this report, the register of substantial Shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that the Company had been notified of the following
substantial Shareholders’ interests and short positions, representing 5% or more of the

Company's issued share capital:

TERRAEATZROIEBRD <
E%R

RARSE A BREFRPEKHIE 3364
FEZTERREZMER  KAREMET
NEERR 2 ERRABERRFA 2 EBEITR
A5%A L

Number of

Ordinary Shares Percentage
Name HH ZEREE Bok
Hollyview International Limited (note (a)) Hollyview International Limited (Fi3 (a)) 224,000,000 27.76%
Mr. Hu Yebi (note (a)) TAE B S 4 (M3 (a) 224,000,000 27.76%
Excellent Success Asia Limited (note (b)) BRTMERA ARG (b)) 140,000,000 17.35%
Mr. Cheung Man Kwong (note (b)) RIS A (B EE (b)) 140,000,000 17.35%
Mass Talent Financial Limited (note (c)) Mass Talent Financial Limited (FfizF (c)) 112,000,000 13.88%
Mr. Niu Zhongjie (note (c)) HEEEE () 112,000,000 13.88%
Mr. Sang Kanggiao ZRBEE 84,000,000 10.41%
Notes: PitsE

(@  Mr.Hu Yebiis the sole beneficial shareholder of Hollyview International Limited.

(b)  Mr. Cheung Man Kwong is the sole beneficial shareholder of Excellent Success Asia Limited.

() Mr. Niu Zhongjie is the sole beneficial shareholder of Mass Talent Financial Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an interest of a short position in the
shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company that was required to be

recorded under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2014 is contained in note 33 to the consolidated financial

statements.

None of these related party transactions constitute a connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which are subject to the reporting, announcement and the
independent shareholders'approval requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") was conditionally
adopted by the written resolutions of the sole Shareholder of the Company passed on
3 December 2011, pursuant to which the Board may, at its absolute discretion and on
such terms as it may think fit, grants options to any employee(s) (whether full time or
part time including any Director) of any member of the Group at the exercise price for
such number of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to
grant options to selected employee(s) as incentives or rewards for their contribution or

potential contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000 Shares which represents
approximately 0% of the Shares in issue on the date of this report. The maximum
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to any employee (s) (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding options), in
any |2-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue

from time to time.

Reference is made to the Composite Document. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
in the case that a general offer is made to the Shareholders, the optionholders shall be
entitled to exercise his/her outstanding share options in whole or in part within fourteen
(14) days of receipt of such notice. To the extent that any share option has not been so

exercised, it shall upon the expiry of such period lapse and determine.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period as the Board may determine but in any event shall not exceed
10 years from the date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the
offer of the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum holding period before an

option is exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-one days inclusive of the
day on which such offer was made. The amount payable to our Company on acceptance

of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price is to be determined by the Board provided always that it shall be at
least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the grant of the option, which must
be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, provided that the exercise price shall in no event be less than

the nominal amount of one Share.

The Company has granted a total of 15,960,000 share options (restated) to certain eligible
employees under the Share Option Scheme on 7 December 2012, the exercise price of
options granted is HK$0.915 (restated) per share. The options have a term of 3.5 years
commencing from 7 December 2012; or until the early termination of the options in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme, exercisable from 7 December 2014. All the
eligible employees accepted the granted options. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
share-based payment amounted to approximately HK$0.94 million is recognized as the

employee benefit expense.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules

since the listing of the Shares on 16 January 2012,

MATERIAL LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS

During the year, the Group had no matenial litigations and arbitrations.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 March 2015, ASR Victory, a shareholder of the Group, together with the Group's
three directors, Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai
Lo, Niki, (collectively the “Guarantors”), entered into a deed of funding undertakings to
provide sufficient funding to the Group in the event that its existing banking facilities are
voided, cancelled, terminated, reduced or not renewed. The funding notice shall be issued
by the Company to ASR Victory and the Guarantors within 12 months of the date of
the deed. The total amount of funding undertaking shall not exceed HK$120 million. The
funding when provided shall be treated as an advance to Company and be repayable by
the Company at a suitable time to be agreed among the Company, ASR Victory and the
Guarantors, but in any event shall be fully repaid on or before 24 months from the date of

the deed.

Except as aforementioned, no significant events took place subsequent to 31 December

2014.
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AUDITOR ¥R

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and ARBHREDEHEERKESHEBHAE
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment B RBREMEREE  EREERIEEE
of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the annual BT BRESRKESHMEBAALL

general meeting, AR RERERRRBERE LIRS -
By order of the Board EEZEH

Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny FE

Chairman REREE

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015 &% 2015683H8250
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Good corporate governance is conducive to enhancing the Group's overall performance
and accountability is essential in modern corporate administration. The Board, which
includes three independent non-executive Directors out of a total of six Directors, is
responsible for setting strategic, management and financial objectives and continuously
observes the principles of good corporate governance and devotes considerable effort to
identifying and formalising best practice to ensure the interests of Shareholders, including

those of minority Shareholders, are protected.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and has its shares
listing on the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2012 (the “Listing Date"). The corporate
governance rules applicable to the Company is on Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code from
the Listing Date until 31 March 2012 and with the revised Corporate Governance Code
from | April 2012 until 31 December 2014 respectively, except for the deviations from

code provisions A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code as described below.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, the independent non-
executive Directors should attend the general meetings. However, the independent non-
executive Director, Dr. Zhang Xianlin was engaged in other meeting and did not attend

the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 May 2014.
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THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which currently comprises six members,
consisting of three executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Group and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company's affairs. All Directors take decisions objectively in the interests

of the Company.

The Board met five times during the year ended 31 December 2014 for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering and approving the
overall strategies and policies of the Company. Details of the attendance records are set

out below:

Executive Directors

BTES

Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny REREE
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEEE
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BERLE
Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFGITES

Mr. Wei Jin Cai B K&
Dr. Zhang Xianlin REMEL
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AMEEL

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. The Board includes a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent element on

the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The list of all Directors is set out under Corporate Information on page 2 and
the independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate

communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed under Biographies of

Directors and Senior Management on pages 36 to 44.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to lead and control the business operations of the Group.
Decisions made are driven for the best interest of the Shareholders and maximizing the
Shareholders’ wealth. The Directors formulate strategic directions, oversee the operations

and monitor the financial and management performance of the Group as a whole.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rule 3.10 (1) of the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors. All the independent non-executive Directors have
the appropriate qualifications in accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of
the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under the Listing Rules. Independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors has been assessed by the Board and the Board considers that all independent

non-executive Directors are independent as required under the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has been appointed for a term of three years and shall be subject to

retirement by rotation once every three years.

In accordance with the Company's articles of association, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new director appointed to
fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election by

Shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of his appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requirements.

In compliance with code provision A.6.5, Directors are continually updated on the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment to enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices and to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for Directors will be

arranged where necessary.
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LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against the Directors in compliance with code provision Al8. The insurance coverage is

reviewed on an annual basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements of the
Company with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory requirements

and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The intemal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, to identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of
the Group. The internal auditor reviews and evaluates the control process, monitors any
risk factors on a regular basis, and reports to the audit committee on any findings and

measures to address the variances and identified risks.

During the year, the Board, through the audit committee, conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company. The review covered the
financial reporting and compliance procedures of the Group. The Board also reviewed the
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's accounting and financial reporting

function.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report

on pages 45 to 46.

For the year ended 3| December 2014, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company's auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, amounted to approximately HK$ 1.7 million
(2013: HK$ 1.4 million) and HK$0.5 million (2013: HK$0.3 million) in respect of the annual

audit and non-audit services respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted

on the Company's website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The roles and

functions of the audit committee include the following;

. to review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the internal auditor or external auditor before submission

to the Board;

. to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to the work
performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal

of external auditor; and

. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system and associated

procedures.
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The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors (namely,
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, Mr. Wei Jin Cai and Dr. Zhang Xianlin) who possess the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The chairman of the audit committee is Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony, who is
an independent non-executive Director. None of the members of the audit committee
is a former partner of the Company's existing external auditor. The audit committee has
separate and independent access to the advice and services of the senior management
of the Company, and is able to seek independent professional advice at the Company's

expense upon reasonable request.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December 2014 and
reviewed its revised terms of reference, the Group's annual results and report for the year
ended 3| December 2013, the Group's interim result and report for the period ended 30
June 2014, the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the corporate governance
matters, the report of internal auditor from the management on the Company's internal
control and risk management review and processes, and the re-appointment of the
external auditor, subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual

general meeting. Details of the attendance records of the audit committee are set out

below:

Member

RE

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AMEEL
Mr. Wei Jin Cai WA K&
Dr. Zhang Xianlin REMEL
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The

roles and functions of the remuneration committee include the following;

. making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure

and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior management;

. establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will participate in

deciding his own remuneration; and

. determining annual remuneration package by reference to the performance of the

individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The remuneration committee comprises five members, namely, Dr. Zhang Xianlin, Mr.
Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard, Mr. Wei Jin Cai and Dr. Tyen Kan Hee,
Anthony, the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors. The chairman
of remuneration committee is Dr. Zhang Xianlin, who is an independent non-executive
Director. Two meetings were held by the remuneration committee during the year ended
31 December 2014. All members attended the meetings. The remuneration committee
reviewed its revised terms of reference during the meeting. Details of the attendance

records of the remuneration committee members are set out below:

Member

241

Dr. Zhang Xianlin REMEL
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny REREE
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEELYE
Mr. Wei Jin Cai WS E
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AMEEL
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 |. The roles

and functions of the nomination committee include the following;

. reviewing the Board structure;
. monitoring the nomination, appointment and succession planning of Directors; and
. assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The nomination committee comprises five members, namely Mr. Wei Jin Cai, Mr. Mak
Chi Hung, Richard, Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki, Dr. Zhang Xianlin and Dr. Tyen Kan Hee,
Anthony, the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors. The chairman
of the nomination committee is Mr. Wei Jin Cai, who is an independent non-executive
Director. Two meetings were held by the nomination committee during the year ended
31 December 2014. All members attended the meetings. The nomination committee
reviewed its revised terms of reference. Details of the attendance records of the

nomination committee members are set out below:

Member

RE

Mr. Wei fin Cai MR K&
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard BEELYE
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki BERTE
Dr. Zhang Xianlin REME L
Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony AfMEEL

The nomination procedures are governed by the terms of reference of nomination
committee which are published on the Company's website and the website of the Stock

Exchange.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 30 August 2013 and

discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and

contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions set out

below:

. developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and making recommendations to the Board;

. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

. reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

. developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual

(if any) applicable to Directors and employees ; and

. reviewing the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding securities transactions by Directors and senior management. After specific
enquiry, all Directors of the Company confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code since the listing of the Shares on
16 January 2012.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication between
the Board and the Shareholders. They provide an opportunity for Shareholders to
better understand the Group's operation, financial performance, business strategies and
outlook. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee or, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees are available to answer questions at Shareholder meetings.
The AGM will be held on 2 June 2015. The notice of AGM was sent to Shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the AGM. To promote effective communication, the
Company maintains a website at www.asr.com.hk, where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company's financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted. The Board, according to the Listing Rules, will conduct voting at
the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the Company voting will be announced on

the Company's website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) to be

called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM include
a written notice of those proposals being submitted by Shareholders, addressed to
the Board at the registered office. The detailed procedures vary according to whether
the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the
proposal relates to the election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a
director. The relevant procedures are set out in the Notice of AGM which accompanies
the despatch of this annual report to Shareholders and will be included with the notice to

Shareholders of any future AGM.
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Article 88 of the Company's articles of association provides that if a Shareholder duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting wishes to propose a person other than a
Director of the Company for election as a Director at the general meeting, he/she/it shall
deposit a written notice to that effect at the principle place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong for the attention of the Board. Such notice should also be signed by the
nominated candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected. In order to ensure
that Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the
nominated candidate, such notice should be given to the Company within seven days
after the dispatch of the notice of annual general meeting of the Company. Details of
the Shareholders' right to propose a person for election as a Director and the related

procedures are set out on the Company's website at www.asr.com.hk.

Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company's
Registrar. Enquiries may be directly put to the Board by questions at an AGM or EGM.
Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward proposals and other
enquiries may also be made to the Board by writing to the Company Secretary at the
Company's office in Hong Kong at Units 1107-12, lith Floor, Lu Plaza, 2 Wing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERERE

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of six Directors, including three

executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny (R¥R % 4), aged 54, was appointed as our executive Director

on 28 June 201 | and is the chairman of the Board and one of the Founders. He is
responsible for overall business strategy and development and management of our Group
as a whole. Mr. Yu has over 30 years of experience in the aviation industry. From 1983 to
1989, Mr. Yu worked in various management positions with United Airlines. From 1989
to 1990, he worked as the Central Pacific Manager with Trans World Airlines. From 1990
to 2000, he worked as the General Manager to oversee the operations in Greater China
and the North Asia Region with Lauda Air, a member of the Austrian Airlines Group. In
February 2001, Mr. Yu joined AOE Freight as a management employee and became its
shareholder in March 2002. Mr. Yu has been awarded the Sales Award of the Year 1986
by United Airlines. On 12 December 1996, Mr. Yu graduated from the Chinese University

of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.

Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (BE&H %), aged 47, was appointed as our executive
Director on 28 June 2011 and is one of the Founders. He was also appointed as the
chief executive officer — logistics of our Company on 7 December 2012, responsible for
the development and management of our Group's non-exclusive sales business. Mr. Mak
has over 23 years of experience in cargo revenue management, product development
and strategic planning. In June 1991, he commenced work with Federal Express as an
account executive, where he was subsequently promoted to Sales Manager and was
responsible for supervising the cargo and express business in Hong Kong and Taiwan. In
October 2000, Mr. Mak joined AOE Freight as a management employee and became its
shareholder in March 2002. On 6 December 1990, Mr. Mak graduated from the University

of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree, majoring in Chemistry.
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Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki (B{EB& 5t 4), aged 49, was appointed as our executive Director on
28 June 2011 and is one of the Founders. He was also appointed as the chief executive
officer — general sales agent of our Company on 7 December 2012, responsible for the
development and management of our Group's GSA business. Mr. Law has over 28 years
of experience in the air cargo business. From 1986 to 1995, Mr. Law served Japan Airlines
for airport passenger administration, UTL Service Limited (then GSA of Trans World
Airlines) as a sales executive for the cargo and passenger divisions, and Lauda Air in its
cargo department. He started his service with Lauda Air as a cargo manager and was
subsequently promoted to a regional cargo manager. In April 1995, Mr. Law joined Orient
Air (HK) Limited, which was principally engaged in the wholesale of air cargo space from
GSA agreements, as a director. In 2007, Mr. Law joined our Group for the development

of our GSA business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wei Jin Cai (B8 7 £ 4), aged 65, was appointed as our independent non-executive

Director on | July 2011. Mr. Wei has over 46 years of experience in civil aviation. From
April 1969 to March 1970, Mr. Wei worked in the Chengdu branch of the Civil Aviation
Administration of China. In October 1970, Mr. Wei was promoted to work in the
headquarters of the Civil Aviation Administration of China. From August 1985 to March
1993, Mr. Wei acted as the deputy party secretary of the Party Committee of Institution
of the Civil Aviation Administration of China. He was appointed as the party secretary
of Civil Aviation Management Institute of China in March 1993 and as the president in
October 2008. Mr. Wei retired from the Civil Aviation Management Institute of China
in August 2010. Mr. Wei is currently an independent non-executive Director of China
Southern Airlines Company Limited (stock code: 1055), a company which shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. He is concurrently acting as an independent director of Xiamen
Iport Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 600897), a company which shares are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He had also been an independent director of Shandong
Airlines Company Limited (stock code: 200152), a company which shares are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange during the period form March 2006 to June 2012. Mr. Wei
graduated from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China majoring in economics and management through distance learning in December

1994. He conducted an in-depth study on the operation and management of civil aviation.
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Dr. Zhang Xianlin (REME L), aged 61, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on | October 201 1. Dr. Zhang has over 36 years of experience in the
areas of accounting and management and in the aviation industry. Dr. Zhang graduated
from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China
majoring in economics and management through distance leaming in December 1997. He
then obtained from Huazhong University of Science and Technology a Master's Degree in
Business Administration and a Doctoral Degree in Management in December 1998 and
December 2004 respectively. He is a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. During the period from March 1978 to December 1996,
he served in various positions including senior management positions in the Civil Aviation
Administration of China. Between December 1996 and April 2009, Dr. Zhang had held
various senior managerial positions for several Hong Kong and PRC companies, including
the chairman of the board of supervisors in Air Macau Company Limited, the general
manager in China National Aviation Company Limited, a director in Hong Kong Dragon
Airlines Limited and the chairman of the board of supervisors in Air China Limited (stock
code: 753) and the chairman of the board of Directors of HNA Group (Hong Kong) Co,
Limited. Dr. Zhang had also been a non-executive Director of Cathay Pacific Airways
Limited (stock code: 293) during the period from August 1997 to October 2006. He is
currently an independent non-executive Director of Asia Resources Holdings Limited

(stock code: 899), a company which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (A# =18 =), aged 59, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on | October 201 1. Dr. Tyen has over 37 years of experience
in auditing, accounting, management and company secretarial practice. He is currently
an independent director of Entertainment Gaming Asia Inc. (formerly known as Elixir
Gaming Technologies, Inc.) (stock code: EGT), a company which shares are listed on
the New York Stock Exchange and Alpha Peak Leisure Inc, a company which shares are
listed on the Canada TSX Venture Exchange (stock code: AAP.P) and an independent
non-executive Director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (stock code: 102) and Melco
International Development Limited (stock code: 200), both of which shares are listed on

the Stock Exchange.

38 ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT

REMEL 615 R20IIFI07 I BEZHE
BEUENTES - RETRETREEEY
KM EERRCFEER RETRI197F 12
AREREABERPHPRER - FELHE
BREEE - FHED AR 1998F 12 A & 2004
F1ARGERREASN IHERELSM
REBEHLEM - KiELATREAMES M
BEFREEGE - 1978F3AZE1996F 12 AH
- RETRTPERAMEREESERL
BESREEERA  1996F 12 AZ 2009 F 4
AHE - RETREEEERTEAREET
RERERERL  2RERMAMERNERA
AEEETR PMEXERARGLRE B
EMEERAFAEZRTEEBRMZRNDER
AR(RGARS 73 EEEFRUAREBME
B(ER)ERATESEEFE - 197F8AE
20065 10 AHME - RELTHSERERZEER
AR(BRHORE 293)ERTES - FHAR
DEBIMER EMHEMNERERER DA
(BRDRIR - 899) B FHITES

H#REL 95 R0IFIOAIRER
ERBUFNTES - HELRE: 85
ERRARANWEES BB FER - AR
TR BMAE SR H A LA A Entertainment
Gaming Asia Inc.( 37 Elixir Gaming Technologies,
Inc.) (BB SR : EGT) RIMERZMEFH K
5 F7 LA A Alpha Peak Leisure Inc.(R {7
¥ AAPP)RBVES - BRI LT AR
FEBRAERA RN 102) RiTRER
ERABAA(RMD AR : 200) BILIEHTT
e



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Tyen was a director of Show8 Cyber Media Limited (“Show8"), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong prior to its dissolution as a result of creditors’ voluntary
liquidation commenced on 20 January 2001. Show8 was dissolved in July 2003. Before its
liquidation, Show8 was an Internet content provider. Due to the unfavourable economic
condition at that time and the burst of the Internet bubble in year 2000 and the significant
decline in business activities in the Intemet sector, Show8 was unable to overcome its
financial difficutty and was then put into liquidation in January 2001. Dr. Tyen confirmed
that he was not involved in the dissolution of Show8 and is not aware of any liability as
a result of the dissolution of Show8. He is also not aware of any outstanding claim from
the creditors of Show8 after the dissolution of the company. In the three years preceding
the date of this annual report, Dr. Tyen was also an independent non-executive Director
of Value Convergence Holdings Limited (stock code: 821) and Recruit Holdings Limited
(stock code: 550), both of which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Tyen obtained a Doctoral degree in Philosophy and a Master's degree in Business
Administration on 10 December 1998 and 30 October 1986 respectively, both from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
a member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is currently a practicing certified

public accountant in Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management are responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's

business.

Mr. Ritola, Jouni Juhani, aged 35, is a director of ASR Europe and the beneficial owner
of 40% shareholding in ASR Europe. Mr. Ritola joined our Group on |5 September 2010
and was responsible for overseeing our operations in Europe and Asia. He has over 10
years of experience in project management and the logistics industry. On |7 December
2007 he joined Project Expeditors Limited (formerly known as Polar Logistics Hong
Kong Limited), a project logistics company as a shareholder and director, in which he
was responsible for leading its logistics team and managing its the business operations in
Hong Kong, China, Korea and Japan. On 4 December 2009, Mr. Ritola became the sole
shareholder of Project Expeditors Limited and since then operated it as a sole owner. Mr.
Ritola graduated from the University of Jyvdskyld with a Master of Science in Economics

and Business Administration.
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Mr. Wong Kin Yan, Michael (BE1=54), aged 53, is the Director of Freight and Group
Performance Management. Mr. Wong joined our Group on 5 July 2010.

Mr. Wong has over 34 years of experience in the airlines and cargo industries. Since
1981, Mr. Wong worked as a traffic officer for Thai Airways International Limited and
was responsible for daily operations tasks. He was then promoted to traffic supervisor in
1987 and was responsible for overseeing the daily operations at the airport office of Thai
Airways International Limited. He was then promoted to senior traffic supervisor who was
responsible for handling administrative tasks in the airport office such as staff rostering,
training, annual leave approval, coordination/liaison with various service providers and
government authorities. Mr. Wong left Thai Airways International Limited and joined
Emirates Airlines in 1991, where he worked as the senior station supervisor and was
responsible for handling both operational and administrative tasks in the airport office
of Emirates Airlines. Mr. Wong left Emirates Airlines and joined Scandinavian Airlines in
1992, where he worked as the duty station manager and was responsible for handling
both operational and administrative tasks in the airport office of Scandinavian Airlines. At
the same time, Mr. Wong also acted as the deputy station manager at the airport office
of Scandinavian Airlines when the station manager was away from the station. From
September 1993 to January 2000, Mr. Wong worked initially as a duty airport services
manager for Hong Kong Intemational Airport Services Limited and was promoted as the
airport service manager in May 1994 who was responsible for the provision of ramp and
cargo services. He was then transferred to work in the “Planning & Standards” division in
1999. From January 2000 to April 2001, Mr. Wong worked as a terminal service manager
for AHK Air Hong Kong Limited. From July 2001 to February 2003, he worked as a
manager in respect of operations procedure for Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation.
From March 2003 to January 2007, Mr. Wong worked as a service manager for KLM Royal
Dutch Airlines. During his employment with KLM Royal Dutch Airlines, he was seconded
to its Beijing office for about two years. In February 2007, Mr. Wong joined Hong Kong
Dragon Airlines Limited as a security manager. He was then intemally transferred to Hong
Kong Airport Services Limited and worked as a passenger service manager with effect
from November 2008 and up to June 2010.

EERGREEERERE

ERICEE S35 REEREEENERE
E o mAR010F7 ASHMARER -

BAERMEARREETEERMFLR -
B 1981 Fit  EEAEREERREA TR
BBE  AERAFTEEEE -  BRERRI1987F
BEARERTE AEEEREBEEMZELR
ANBERAENEREE - BREHRES
ARRREREE BEERSHAZTRIET
BRI mBIERRHE Bl - FRIE -
BTR BB BT HERE, HE - &
RERIVIFERRREBRMZARLMA
Emirates Airlines * TR FIGWEE - BEE
Emirates Airlines RJH#35 32 = B IR B 1E R 1T
THE o EHRAER 1992 FEEF Emirates Airlines i
INAJEBRAZE (Scandinavian Airlines) * #E{E3514
EIEE  BREELBMENRSRRAZRE
BIERITHRI(E - AK - EERETRIGIHLE
BRI ENRS AT TG
Bl - 1993F9IRE2000F | A+ HAEM
BREBEBRRERBERAR  ZUAKS
FRIEEIMEE - R 1994F 5 AEF BESRS
L2 AERUMERTIBREERY  Hi&
1999 F R EN# 8 R AT % |80 T{E - 2000 F
IAZ2001 F47 EXEREBERME

PR A BIHE (E M vt RS 4838 = 2001 57 H 2 2003
F2R BREERNEERRAAETRERR
RIB 2 003F3AE07F I A ERERH
BE2KMZ (KM Royal Dutch Airlines) EER
BRIE o AR EXRMZE (KLM Royal Dutch
Airlines) #if8] - ERA BEREZ LRI RIE
BRBOME - EEER2007F2 AMAEE
MEBRADARTLE - EXEHBERL
REEBRSHDRBEARD IETREE -
EHIE 20085 || ARBEE 201056 A ©

Annual Report £ & 2014 41



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERERE

In November 1995, Mr. Wong completed the “Station Ground Handling Management”
training course undertaken by IATA which was intended for airline station and ground
handling managers. In September 2001, he completed the Joint DMS program undertaken
by the Hong Kong Management Association and Lingnan University, thus obtaining a
Diploma in Management Studies. Mr. Wong attended and completed the “Safety Audit
and Lead Auditor Course” undertaken by Aviation Consulting & Training Pty Ltd. and
the “Security Quality Control” course undertaken by IATA in April 2007 and May 2007

respectively.

Ms. Ng Yee Ming, Canny (R#KB/MH), aged 40, is the director of finance and
administration. She has over |7 years of experience in the areas of accounting, taxation,
finance and auditing. Prior to joining our Group as an accounting supervisor on |7
November 2000, Ms. Ng worked in a CPA firm from March 1998 to January 1999. From
April 1999 to July 2000, Ms. Ng worked in various positions at DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Property Management Limited. From July 2000 to October 2000, Ms. Ng worked for New
World TMT Limited (formerly known as New World Infrastructure Limited), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 7). Ms.
Ng graduated from the University of Technology, Sydney with a Bachelor of Business
degree in October 1997. She was admitted as a member of CPA Australia in December
1997 and advanced to the status of Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia in
July 2002.

Mr. Fok Kam Man, Billy (B #8 X 54), aged 49, is the director of GSA. Mr. Fok has over
28 years of experience in the aviation industry. Prior to joining our Group on 2 February
2009, Mr. Fok had worked as the passenger traffic agent and then a lead agent in the
passenger traffic section of Japan Airlines from October 1987 to July 1993. From July 1993
to January 1996, Mr. Fok worked as a junior dealer for Emperor Management Services
(Overseas) Limited. From February 1996 to October 2008, Mr. Fok worked initially as
a passenger services supervisor for Menzies Macau Airport Services Limited and was
promoted to the position of senior duty manager. Mr. Fok graduated from the School
of Continuing Studies, the Macau University of Science and Technology with a degree of

Bachelor of International Tourism Management.
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Mr. Lee Wai Man, Tom (E&3 % %), aged 43, is the general manager for the air freight
and operations of our Group. Mr. Lee has over 2| years of experience in the logistics
industry. Prior to joining our Group on 16 June 1997, he had worked for different freight
forwarding companies. After joining our Group, he has served various positions including
operations supervisor, assistant operations manager, consolidation manager and assistant
general manager. He was promoted to his current position in 2008. Mr. Lee completed a

Dangerous Goods Diploma which was undertaken by IATA and Cathay Pacific in 2003.

Mr. Liu Qi (BI& 5 4), aged 33, is the regional sales manager of our South China
operations. Mr. Liu joined our Group on | August 2005 and has over 9 years of
experience with the logistics industry. After joining our Group, he has served various
positions including the cargo salesman and the cargo sales manager. He was promoted to
his current position in 2012. He graduated from Guangzhou University with a Bachelor

degree of hospitality management in June 2005.

Ms. Feng Qian Qing, Connie (ISfEM/NME), aged 46, is the manager for finance and
administration of our South China operations and our PRC internal compliance officer.
Ms. Feng has over 19 years of experience in the areas of accounting and finance. Prior to
joining our Group as an accounts officer on | November 2005, Ms. Feng worked as an
accounts officer for the Guangzhou branch office of a shipping company from November
1994 to June 1997. From November 2000 to August 2005, she worked as the chief
accounts officer for Guangzhou Chengtong Investment Consultant Limited. After joining
our Group in September 2005, she was promoted as the assistant finance manager
for our South China operations, stationing at the Guangzhou branch of AOE Freight
(Shenzhen). In October 2008, she was further promoted as the manager for finance
and administration of our South China operations. Ms. Feng graduated from Guangzhou
Institute of Technology (formerly known as the Guangzhou Worker Amateur University)

with a diploma in accounting in July 2001.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Cheng Hoo (BBZ5t4), aged 53, was appointed as the company secretary of our

Company on 10 November 2011 to serve our Company on a part-time basis. Mr.
Cheng obtained a bachelor of laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1987.
He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1990 and in England and Wales in 1995.
Mr. Cheng has over 24 years' experience in the practice of law. He is a co-founder and
partner of CWL Partners in association with Nixon Peabody LLP and Hylands Law
Firm where he practises corporate and commercial law. Currently, he is not acting as a

company secretary of any listed companies other than our Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

.
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASR LOGISTICS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group") set out on pages 47 to 167,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2014,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,

and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

B 2B RS

BIRBMRE
HEFNRERERATRR
(RHESHSEMRLNERAT)

$ﬁ%%@ﬂ?ﬂﬂ&ﬁnaﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%w

FITERFMRERERAR (AT EHE
T%ﬂ?ﬁ&ﬁ%%” A(GEIESE MR
BUBRE  HEEUBRREER 20145 12

A3 BRNGARARIEEBBREEEZAL
FENGAZARER  GARZEHRANER

EHRERER  UERFTESHBRRBEREM
FIETmEERt o

ESRGAMBRRARENEE

EXZARARBERS
RELERBB(RREFDOBRER
RRFEAMBRE  UCHEAMBREREL
EMAFAREK - REEERARREAH
ﬁﬁ%%%%mm%%ﬂ EER A B REK
NEFEBEREF LR R M S A E A SRR ©

RN Yl

\>) _4\}*)'?:'

\\

EU)# ‘/\)

DA m

ﬁ

m
JLE

REMNER
FZANEERREAMNES HZTEEME

BRFHER  LEABERRBEHMANE
B Rtz AHENELMBRN - HATE
RAREORNBREAEMALE ERAEE
AEE -

H]]

Annual Report £ & 2014 45



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZBE®RE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

We draw attention to Note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements which states
that the Group breached the covenant requirement of certain banking facilities as at 31
December 2014, and the Group is yet to obtain the waivers of compliance with the
covenant from the relevant banks. This condition, along with other matters as set forth in
Note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements, indicates the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Group's ability to continue as a

going concern. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HEEERREX

As at 31 December 2014
R2014F 128318

2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt THET TR
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BE R 5 9,202 7,184
Intangible assets EEE 6 2,506 557
Available-for-sale financial assets EHEsREE 8 15,653 —
Investment in an associated company R—EBERRIZRE 19(a) — |
Loan to an associated company ) — g A REL 2 §5 19(b) 3,071 3,600
Prepayments and other receivables TR FIE R E A U IR I — 3741
Long-term deposits REEE I 582 441
Deferred income tax assets BEMGEHAE 9 1,506 550
32,520 17,074
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables B SR 10 145,591 133,592
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ TBITFRIE - 1@ RHE b EYRIA || 12,105 6952
Other current assets Hirmeh & & 3,096 1,930
Pledged deposits EEAER 12 6,967 26,882
Cash and cash equivalents RekHReEED 12 228,808 252,534
396,567 421,890
Total assets mEE 429,087 438,964
EQUITY it
Share capital BRA 13 4,034 4,000
Reserves i 14 53,286 294,869
57,320 298,869
Non-controlling interests JEIE 2,225 [,269
Total equity mER 59,545 300,138
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

As at 31 December 2014
R2014E 128318

2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt &£ TR TR
LIABILITIES af
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Finance lease liabilities BMEHEAR |7 170 —
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMEHAE 9 822 1,479
992 1479
Current liabilities RBAR
Trade payables B HEMNFIE 15 167,473 89,619
Finance lease liabilities MEHERRE 17 73 7
Dividend payable FERRRE 121,029 —
Current income tax payable EHEHaRE 7,507 15,594
Other payables and accruals HibEARIERESER 16 38,858 32,127
Borrowings &5 8 33,610 —
368,550 137,347
Total liabilities BeE 369,542 138,826
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 429,087 438964
Net current assets RBEEFE 28,017 284,543
Total assets less current liabilities BEERATBEE 60,537 301,617
The notes on pages 56 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 6Z 17BN RZEReMBRENA

statements.

£
K ER S o

F4TZE 167 BN HEHREN2015F3 5258

The financial statements on pages 47 to |67 were approved for issue by the Board of

Directors on 25 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf. HEZSRAETE  TEHATRRESE -
Director Director
3 =
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BALANCE SHEET
EERREX

As at 31 December 2014
R2014F 128318

2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt &£ TR TR
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RETEARIIRE 7 127,703 126,764
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T RIE KB A FE M K0 [ 180,790 237,662
Cash and cash equivalents ReLkBReEED 12 6,813 51,516
Current assets RBEE 187,603 289,178
Total assets BmEE 315,306 415,942
EQUITY it
Share capital BRA 13 4,034 4,000
Reserves Gl 14 189,967 361,666
Total equity MR 194,001 365,666
LIABILITY a8
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accruals Hih B EER 16 276 50,276
Dividend payable FERRRE 121,029 —
Total liabilities BaE 121,305 50276
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 315,306 415942
Net current assets RBEERE 66,298 238902
Total assets less current liabilities BEEATBEE 194,001 365,666
The notes on pages 56 to 167 are an integral part of these financial statements. F56ZE 167 BERMFRZZHBRRMAE
ﬁ_j\ o

These financial statements on pages 47 to |67 were approved for issue by the Board of

Directors on 25 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf.

Director

=

F4TEI6TEMTBRKRD P20I5F3H25
FHREZSHATE  UhUTREES -

Director

B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REEHERBER

For the year ended 3| December 2014
BEWM4FANBLFE

2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt THET TRT
Revenue Yoz 20 907,473 806,713
Cost of sales HEKR 0 (743,821) (592,002)
Gross profit E7 163,652 214711
Other losses, net HithEE - FE 21 (5,266) (1,346)
Other income HA 2 2,829 —
Administrative expenses THAX 22 (137,938) (102,836)
Operating profit R 23,277 110,529
Finance income, net BMEWKA - F8E 25 221 557
Share of losses of associated companies i /NG (664) —
Profit before income tax BRATE B A& A 22,834 ['11,086
Income tax expense BRETAERT 26 (9,951) (18,380)
Profit for the year FREF 12,883 92,706
Other comprehensive (loss)/ income: Hiv4rb (B18) /A -
Items that have been reclassified or BEERBFAGEESHE
may be reclassified to profit or loss BulEH
Change in fair value of available -for-sale A ESREE
financial assets ZARBEEL (762) —
Currency translation differences ] 310 1,301
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEKHER 12,431 94,007
Profit attributable to: AT R IAEE SRR -
— Equity holders of the Company —AREERFEA 13,117 93,050
— Non-controlling interests — RS (234) (344)
12,883 92,706
Total comprehensive income attributable to: NTEEREZEKSEE -
— Equity holders of the Company . YNGIL ZESZ N 12,409 94,375
— Non-controlling interests — IR 22 (368)
12,431 94,007
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REEHEWER

For the year ended 3| December 2014
HENM4FNANBLFE

2014 2013
Note HK Cents HK Cents
Bt &£ Al 7l
Earnings per share for profit attributable to AREERFEARIEENE
equity holders of the Company SREM
— Basic —&EX 28(a) .64 11.63
~ Diluted —#% 28(b) .63 11.63
2014 2013
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
g5 TER TET
Dividends i) 29 126,629 156,800

The notes on pages 56 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

F56ZE 167 ANMEARERAMBKRENA

A °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEERBEHX

For the year ended 3| December 2014
HEWM4FNANBLFE

Avtributableto equity holdersof the Company

Blence t | january 2014

ROME| I BES

Compreenshe ncome 2
Proft forte year ER
Other compretensieincome. £ 2HHE
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Betieofvereopiors 1R ERE
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ononcortligitesst  HAEETEAER
Share b payment HERRERARE
Totd rscionswihowners— EEEAMR A48
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 3| December 2014
HENM4FNANBLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KRIEEREAEE

Share-
based
payment
Sttty resenve Non-
andlegd  DIRG controling
Share e Coptd  Exchange  resenes  AETR Retained interests Total

-

aptd  premum  resene  resenes  EER MR St eaming Tl ¥k equity
BE RbEE AREE EXRE SRR MBR  0G REEN B BE 28R
HKS000  HKSO000  HKF000  HKSO00  HKFOO0  HKSO00  HKSO000  HK$000  HKS00  HKSOOO  HK$000
TRt TEr TEr TR  TEn  TEr TR  TEn TR TEn  TEn

Bdlance at | anuary 2013 R03E | A1 BER 400 565 4lel 2089 1719 94 88 1N W el M
Comprehensive income 2ERE
Proft for he year ERmEH - - - - - - - BB B0 B4 90706
Other comprehensive income B2 ERE
Cumency transiaton diferences EXEE - - - 1325 - - 1325 - 1305 (V]
Total comprehensive income rENELE - - - 13D - - 13 BE0 I (068) %4007
Transactions with owners REEANRA
Dividends RE - - - - - - — (B0 (840) - (340
Acquition of a subsidiary KE-FHEAA - - - - - - - - - 846 846
Transfe to statutory reserve EREEERR - - - - 95 - 9% (956) - - -
Partil disposal of a subsicary to HEFANBLR

non-controling interest THERER - - 4 - - - 4 - 1 5 1

Acquistion of addiondl inerestna~ [FEERER LIS
subsidary from non-controling ierest B 2 FEY

EfiEs - - ) - - - ) - @) 5 (10)
Share-based payment WRI RT3 - - - - - 145 1425 - 45 - 45
Totd transactons vith owners ERRANR AR - - - %615 00 (X (514 @ 550
Balance at 3| Decenber 013 ROBENAIIALE 400 7SS SH0 3 25 U519 9033 08526 298869 1269 300)38

6E l67 BN E A% FRE M BHRERNAE

£5
REES o

The notes on pages 56 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SIPAN ==
MEREIMRER
For the year ended 3| December 2014
BE014F 2R3 BILFRE

2014 2013
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Pt TER TAET
Operating activities: ReED
Cash generated from operations EEBMERE 30(a) 117,707 119,697
Income tax paid ERPAEH (19,651) (17,260)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEBMEREFHE 98,056 102,437
Investing activities: REEE :
Cash acquired in acquisition of subsidiaries, W EAR - MRENRER
net of consideration paid igEs:kn 32 223 1,694
Investment in an associated company R—EEERRNKRE 19(a) (588) (1
Interest received G 578 559
Purchase of intangible asset BERVEE 30(c) (687) —
Purchase of available for sale financial assets BEAMIESREE (16,415) —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BELRE 30(c) (6,447) (1,589)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE - BEREHE
plant and equipment H TS SR 30(b) 1,615 21
Prepayment for non-current assets FRBEENENTE — (3,741)
Loans to an associated company M) —fEEE A REL 2 BN 19(b) — (3,600)
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary RESZEE I
from non-controlling interest NGNS OR R ek g — (1,068)
Proceeds from partial disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBAREY#R
to non-controlling interest TR E R FE5IE 7(b) 2 47
Net cash used in investing activities REERDMAASFE (21,719) (7.678)
Financing activities: METEE -
Proceeds from borrowings B 5IE 61,238 —
Repayment of borrowings EBREX (28,503) -
Repayment of obligations under finance lease EEmEMERE (51) 7)
Exercise of share options TR E 6,277 -
Interest paid RAREAF) (357) Q)
Dividend paid ERRE (140,000) (36,400)
Net cash used in financing activities BETBMARETE (101,396) (36,409)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SIPAN ==
MEREMRER
For the year ended 3| December 2014
HENM4FNANBLFE

2014 2013

Note HK$°000 HK$'000

Pt TER TET

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents BRERBEZEMCRL), M (25,059) 58,350

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ~ F#13i& RIHEZEY 252,534 192,935

Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents Re kR SEBME K K 458 1,249

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRRERAEEEY 227,933 252,534
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERBEEBYAN

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERE 12 228,808 252,534

Bank overdraft BITEX 18 (875) —

227,933 252,534

The notes on pages 56 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

S6E 167 BN ERZ S A MBEHRRNAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

56

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited (the “Company’) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 28 June 2011 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is 3rd Floor, Queensgate House, |13 South
Church Street, P.O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman, KY1-1002 Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries (together,
the "Group") are principally engaged in the provision of air freight service in the

wholesale market.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$) unless

otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors

on 25 March 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial

assets, which are carried at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32) and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Listing
Rules, which are applicable to 2014 annual report. The financial statements
will comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) according to the applicable

disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules in the 2015 annual report.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2

e U WmER R

FTREHBEREAE

i 2 BA <F VR 8

&=

IEEAMBRRARANTIES
AABREIMT - BRBAIRIN - ZF

BRNAEZRFE—EERER -

2.1

RUEE

RRANEAMBRRDIRBEE
HHEREEN(BEMBRSE
AIDGRH - e P BHRRAEL K
AEFERE  BERERTHLE
ERMEEFLRABERE -

RAVBRERERES R A
(BNE)ZRBERER ETHI
ZHERBREERURE  ZEHAT
BEARVI4EFF - BHEREB
RWOISEFRIBE MR 2@
BB BRIEB R A
(BeNE)ZERBEBAT -

BREBRVHREEAGHIBR
R BRAETERZ g
B -BEEETSREAARECE
BB EL AR - BRFR
REAE - B EE YRS
PHREAMEBEATEZRK
fhE - DERMIEES -

Annual Report £ & 2014 57



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

2

58

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Contd)

@

Going Concern Basis

As explained in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statement,
as at 31 December 2014, the Group had total banking facilities
of approximately HK$230,026,000, of which approximately
HK$33,610,000 bank borrowings and approximately HK$80,087,000
bank guarantees were utilised. These banking facilities are subject to
renewal. The Group has failed to comply with a restrictive financial
covenant requirement of certain banking facilities as at 31 December
2014. The total banking facilities from these banks were approximately
HK$ 173,600,000, of which approximately HK$24,674,000 bank
borrowings and HK$58,513,000 bank guarantees had been drawn
down and utilised as at 31 December 2014. As at the date of
approval of the consolidated financial statements, no waivers had been
obtained from these banks from complying with the covenant. The
breach of the restrictive financial covenant requirement constitutes
an event of default in accordance with the bank facility arrangements,
which may cause the relevant banking facilities of HK$ 173,600,000 be
voided, cancelled, terminated, reduced or not renewed, such that the
existing bank guarantees of HK$58,513,000 might be terminated any
time, and these banks might also request for immediate repayment
of the outstanding borrowings of HK$24,674,000. Bank guarantees
are required by airlines and integrated carriers to allow the Group to
secure cargo space and to operate under the terms and conditions
as agreed with airlines and integrated carriers (Note 34). Without
these banking facilities, additional funding and working capital will
be required by the Group to fulfil the bank guarantee requirements
of the airlines and integrated carriers and to continue its air freight
business without significant curtailment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

@

Going Concern Basis (Cont d)

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty

which may cast significant doubt over the Group's ability to continue

as a going concem.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's cash

flow projections, which cover a period of twelve months from 31

December 2014. The directors are of the opinion that, taking into

account the following, the Group will have sufficient working capital

to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due within the

next twelve months from 31 December 2014

The management maintains continuous communication with
the Group's principal banks and the directors are of the opinion
that all banking facilities, including those that have covenants
being breached as at 31 December, 2014, will continue to be
available to the Group for the next 12 months from the date

of the balance sheet.

On 23 March 2015, ASR Victory Limited (“ASR Victory”), a
shareholder of the Group, together with the Group's three
directors, Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard
and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki, (collectively the “Guarantors”),
entered into a deed of funding undertakings to provide
sufficient funding to the Group in the event that its existing
banking facilities are voided, cancelled, terminated, reduced
or not renewed. The funding notice shall be issued by the
Company to ASR Victory and the Guarantors within 2
months of the date of the deed. The total amount of funding
undertaking shall not exceed HK$120 million.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

2

60

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Contd)

@)

Going Concern Basis (Cont d)

The funding when provided shall be treated as an advance to the
Company and be repayable by the Company at a suitable time to be
agreed among the Company, ASR Victory and the Guarantors, but in
any event shall be fully repaid on or before 24 months from the date
of the deed (Note 36).

In the opinion of the directors, in light of the above, the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to finance its operations and to
fulfil its bank guarantee requirements and financial obligations as and
when they fall due in the coming twelve months from the date of
the balance sheet. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether the Group is able to obtain the necessary funding as
described above as and when needed. Whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern would depend upon the
Group's ability to generate adequate cash flows by successfully
negotiating with the banks to continue to provide banking facilities
to the Group, obtaining necessary funding from ASR Victory and the
Guarantors as needed that will be repayable beyond twelve months
from the balance sheet date, and generating adequate operating cash
inflows. Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concem,
adjustments would have to be made to reduce the carrying values
of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
financial liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in

the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FEEHEEHMES)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd) 21 REEE(E)

(b)  Amendments to existing standards and interpretation effective in ) HEALEEUEELEAZE

2014 but have no significant impact or are not relevant to the Group SHENEF R 2014 F
LR E T B R AE T R
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
ERGTENENRRUER) HREREERSRAE
HKAS 36 (Amendment) Recoverable amount disclosures for non — financial assets
ERGTERNE6RUEFR) FERMEEVONSBRE
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting
BB ERIE 39 R (EFTA) TETARE R AL E
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27201 1) (Amendment) Investment entities
ERMBREENE 0% BEMBREER REER
F 125 BEEENFE 2752011 F)(BFTK)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies
FE(BRMBERERBRRES) —2BE 2% GG
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2

2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd)

(c)  New standards and amendments to existing standards have been (c)

issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning | January

2014 and have not been early adopted by the Group

HKAS | (Amendment)
e RR R EAACCHEN

HKAS 19 (201 1) (Amendment)

BEGENE 1952011 F)
(E&TA)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

ERGTENE27RUERR)

HKKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendment)

EREGREAF 165 R
BRI EREACHEN

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
BRGRIEAE 65K
EEGERE 45
HKFRS 9
BEUBREREIE IR

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (Amendment)
BEMBREERE 105
BERGERNE 285 (EAR)

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT

Disclosure initiative

RETHH

Defined benefit plans: Employees contributions
TGS BEHER

Equity method in separate financial statements

B RA LA

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation

and amortization

BBMERBHOARTIA

Agriculture: bearer plants

BEEEREY

Financial instruments
TRITA

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and

its associate or joint venture

REEABEAAELEANBELEILIE
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2 EREEE)
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BB F R 1 A AR FTERY
RE5 7 EREET A

Effective for annual
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or after

RTHIR#R 2%

BR BV 2
HMEEXR

| January 2016
2016F1 A1 R

[ July 2014
2014781 H

| January 2016
2016F1A18

| January 2016
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| January 2016
2016F1A1H

| January 2018
2018F 1 A1 H

| January 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FESHEESEE)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Contd) 21 REEE(E)
(c)  New standards and amendments to existing standards have been (o AEEUEEFRACE M
fssued but are not effective for the financial year beginning | January 1BR2014%F 1 A1 HEIE L
2014 and have not been early adopted by the Group (Contd) A1 BEJZ 1 K BB FTER)

RYFHEREET T (%)

Effective for annual

periods beginning on

or after
RIS BEHRH 2%
BIR AV S
HEEX
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception | January 2016
and HKAS 28 (Amendment)
ERMBRERAF 0% BEM REER  BRES ARNGISMER 016F1 A1 R
BREERE 12 REBE G ER
F 2858 (7] )
HKFRS I'l (Amendment) Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations | January 2016
BRAMBREERNFE 1 KETA) WBARERENSHEA 016F 1 A1 R
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts | January 2016
BAMBRELERSE 145 EERTERP 2016F 1 A1H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers | January 2017
BEUMBEREERE 155 KAEEPROZKA 0I7F1 /1R
Annual Improvement Project Annual improvements 2010-2012 cycle [ July 2014
FRYGERE 01022012 F BHFENE 2014574 1B
Annual Improvement Project Annual improvements 201 1-2013 cycle | July 2014
FRUERR 2011 E2013FBHFEIE 01457718
Annual Improvement Project Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle | January 2016
FRYGERE 012220145 BRFESE 2016F1 A 1H
The Group is assessing the impact of these new standards and amendments AEEFETEZENENRER
to existing standards. The Group will apply these new standards and BEAMETT AN E - REEH
amendments to existing standards when they are effective in the respective R EMERN R AR A EROERT
annual periods. ARNEEFEARERRER -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.1

22

Basis of preparation (Contd)

(d)  New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into effect as from the
Company's first financial year commencing on or after 3 March 2014
in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of expected impact of the changes
in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements
in the period of initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the
impact is unlikely to be significant and only the presentation and the
disclosure of information in the consolidated financial statements will

be affected.

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable retums from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred

to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
22 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(a)  Subsidiaries

(0

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets in
the event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Al
other components of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

66

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

22

Consolidation (Cont d)

@)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(0

Business combinations (Cont d)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such

remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent

settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Contd)

(a)  Subsidiaries (Contd)

(0

Business combinations (Cont d)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the

difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to

conform with the Group's accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
2.2 Consolidation (Contd)

(a)  Subsidiaries (Contd)

(i) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change

of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that
is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.2 Consolidation (Contd)

(a)  Subsidiaries (Contd)

(i

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other

comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

2

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

22

23

Consolidation (Cont d)
(b)  Separate financial statements (Contd)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net assets including

goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investment in associates

includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence
is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where

appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

23

Associates (Cont'd)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using

equity method' in the statement of comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P WmR R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

24  Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the

Executive Directors that makes strategic decisions.

2.5  Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency").
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which is

the Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income within “other losses, net".
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.5  Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

. income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive

income are translated at average exchange rates; and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

25

Foreign currency translation (Cont d)

(@

Disposal of forejgn operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group's
ownership interest in associates or jointly controlled entities that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is

reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

26

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged

to profit or loss during the years in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual value over their estimated useful life. The annual rates

are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 25%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised within “Other losses, net', in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

27

Intangible assets

@)

®)

Goodawill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred over the Group's interest in
net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities of the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units
("CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Computer software with definite useful lives and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate costs of other

intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FESHEESEE)

28

29

Impairment of non-financial assets 28

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed

for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets 2.9
(a)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables and
available-for-sales financial assets. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management

determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

29

Financial assets (Contd)

@

Classification (Contd)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
the amounts that are settled or expected to be settled more

than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These

() Loans and receivables
are classified as non-current assets.
(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of

it within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.9  Financial assets (Cont'd)

()

Recognition and measurement

Regular way of purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity. When securities classified as
available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustment recognised in equity is included in the statement of

comprehensive income as "Other losses, net”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income as part of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income as part of other income when the Group's right to receive

payments is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.10

Impairment of financial assets

(a)  Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be

reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

BRBHRELS| R EE ()

(a)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont d) (a)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis

of an instrument's fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the

previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.10

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

()

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial

assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss
is reversed through the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.,

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

211

2.12

213

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed
in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less and bank overdrafts, net of pledged deposits. Bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown

in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one vyear or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are

presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the other

financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are changed to profit or loss in the period in which they are

incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company, its subsidiaries and an associated
company operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Cont d)

()

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differencess

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Cont d)

(b)  Deferred income tax (Contd) (b) EBEFREHE)
Outside basis differences IR EEE

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when there
is an agreement in place that gives the group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences

arising from the associate's undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against

which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Cont d)

(©

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an

intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits

@)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are generally held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The pension plans are generally funded by payments from
employees and by the relevant group companies. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contribution if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods. The Group has no

further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.18 Employee benefits (Cont d)

(b)  Profit-sharing and bonus plans

(©

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company's shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a

constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet

date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not

recognised until the time of leave.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.19 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to

the fair value of the options granted:

(@)  including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's

share price);

(b)  excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and

remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

() including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the

requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the

specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated
for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period between

service commencement period and grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

2.19

220

Share-based payments (Contd)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Cont d)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment

to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are

credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are

not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

2

92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 2 FESHEESEE)

221 Revenue recognition 221 HEER
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable WREREEERBEEBEPIE
from provision of services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. HIRBEEND W ERRENA
Revenue is shown, net of retumns, rebates and discounts and is recognised as nEBE- - WEENRRE - BNk
follows: Fr&FIRLERMT -
(a)  Air freight service fee income () ZFERBEUA

Air freight service fee income is recognised when the air freight
services are provided, the timing of which usually coincides with the
departure date. This service fee income will be either recognised at
gross or net. The principal or agent relationships is determined by the

arrangement with airlines, integrated carriers and freight forwarders.

(b)  Dividend income (b)

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is

established.

(c)  Service income (c)

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

222

223

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessors are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessors) are

charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of property,
plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’'s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the

leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
current or non-current liabilities. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases
is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease

term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to shareholders of the entities is recognised as a liability
in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are

approved by the shareholders.

e U WmER R

) FESTHRRHBERE)

222

223

HE

NEBENKE DR
HEARENEE
HE RELEHENNFE
(WﬁﬁﬁAm%mEﬂﬁﬁ)BA
HANAE AR R TR -

B

j= a,} puy
EE ;E.'MIE

FEEHEETYE BERR
- AEBEEMARNEBAID

EREBHONE - BERRER
ENBARAHE - RERELEH
ERREREENENRABER
FEHENREMENREEER
fte

°

BHHSERBERREBRZEN

B ERESREERRELE-
EEEEEFENRREE &S
ARBEIFFRBAE - BEKKH
MEBARERRN BRI - £
BESENAESBEENEATH
ME - REREAEEBANOYE
B LR EREENAERFAR
HEMENBEEFERE -

RE DIk

ﬁ?%%%ﬁﬁﬁim%%ﬁﬁ%
BERRMENHEARKIEE
M%ﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ°

Annual Report £ & 2014 93



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

3

94

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Directors of
the Company. The Directors provide principles for overall risk management,

as well as policies covering specific areas.

(a)  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to RMB
and US$. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial

transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

During the year, the Group had not hedged its foreign
exchange risk because the exposure, of assets and liabilities

subject to foreign exchange risk, is not significant.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group considers that the foreign

exchange risk arising from transactions in US$ is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

@)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(0

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont d)

The exposure to foreign exchange risk arising from transactions

in other currencies is minimal.

As at 31 December 2014, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against the HK$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been approximately
HK$430,860 (2013: HK$521,040) lower/higher mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of RMB-
denominated trade and other payables, offset by trade and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The effect
on equity would been approximately HK$430,860 (2013:
HK$521,040) lower/higher.

Interest rate risk

As at 3| December 2014 and 2013, if the interest rate on
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower than the
prevailing interest rate, with all other vairables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$281,000
(2013: nil) lower/higher. The effect on equity would been
approximately HK$281,000 (2013: nil) lower/higher.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

3

96

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

()

Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from deposits placed with banks and financial
institutions, loan to an associated company as well as credit exposures
to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed

transactions. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.

For banks and financial institutions, only independent parties with high

credit rating are accepted.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The existing
debtors have no significant defaults in the past. The Group's historical
experience in collection of trade and other receivables falls within
the recorded allowances and the Directors are of the opinion that

adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has been made.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, loan to an
associated company, deposits placed with banks and financial
institutions represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in

relation to financial assets.

Management makes periodic assessments on the recoverability of
those receivables and deposits, and is of the opinion that adequate

provision for receivables with significant credit risk has been made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(©

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining sufficient

cash and cash equivalents, which is generated from the operating cash

flow and adequate banking facilities.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant

maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance

sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed

in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances

due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of

discounting is not significant.
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At 3| December 2014
20145 12831R

Less than Between Between
| year | to2years 2tob5 years Total
IR (VLS 2E5F Bt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER TET TER TER
Trade payables B HEMNTE 167,473 — — 167,473
Other payables and accruals E At & 11 508 R FE5+ B 26,671 — — 26,671
Dividend payable FEIAR B 121,029 — — 121,029
Finance lease liabilities MEHERE 84 84 100 268
Borrowings & 33,763 — — 33,763
349,020 84 100 349,204
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd) 3 BBEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont d) 3. BEEREZRE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Cont'd) () HEHELEREE)
At 31 December 2013
201312431
Less than Between Between

| year | to2years  2to 5 years Total
| | Z25F 2ESF 85t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TET TET
Trade payables B HEMNFIE 89,619 — — 89,619
Other payables and accruals TR EEHE R 30952 — — 30,952
Finance lease liabilities wﬂﬁfﬁf{\,@i\ 7 — — /
120,578 — — 120,578

98

As explained in Note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has failed to comply with a restrictive financial covenant
requirement of certain banking facilities as at 31 December 2014. The
breach of the restrictive financial covenant requirement constitutes
an event of default in accordance with the bank facility arrangements,
which may cause the relevant banking facilities of HK$ 173,600,000 be
voided, cancelled, terminated, reduced or not renewed, such that the
existing bank guarantees of HK$58,513,000 might be terminated any
time, and these banks might also request for immediate repayment
of the outstanding borrowings of HK$24,674,000. Bank guarantees
are required by airlines and integrated carriers to allow the Group to
secure cargo space and to operate under the terms and conditions
as agreed with airlines and integrated carriers (Note 34). Without
these banking facilities, additional funding and working capital will
be required by the Group to fulfil the bank guarantee requirements
of the airlines and integrated carriers and to continue its air freight

business without significant curtailment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.1

32

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(c)  Liguidity risk (Cont'd)

On 23 March 2015, ASR Victory and the Guarantors, entered into
a deed of funding undertakings to provide sufficient funding to the
Group in the event that its existing banking facilities are voided,
cancelled, terminated, reduced or not renewed. The funding notice
shall be issued by the Company to ASR Victory and the Guarantors
within |2 months of the date of the deed. The total amount of
funding undertaking shall not exceed HK$ 120 million.

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders, or

sell assets to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd) 3 BBEREEE)
3.2 Capital risk management (Cont'd) 32 BXEREE(E)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total liabilities-to-total assets AEERRARHHAEENL X
ratio. The total liabilities-to-total assets ratio as at 3| December 2014 and EEER - R014F R20I13F 12
2013 were as follows: A3IB BEEHBEENLX
o
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Total liabilities BAER 369,542 138,826
Total assets S 429,087 438964
Ratio f & 86% 32%
3.3 Fair value estimation 33 DABEMRS
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by TRMBEEESIMRAAEBEA
valuation method. RHMEIA -
The different levels have been defined as follows: TRBRMEERNT
. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or ° HAEERBERLERMT
liabilities (level 1). GRHRECREAE)(E
B
. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are ° RTEIEMBRENRE
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or O ZEESBRENATEHER
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). B E M8 A - AR E (B

BR)AME(DREER)
(£208) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable ° BEFBBUFKEAER
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). mSEENEABIETE

EBA)(E3E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

The following table represents the Group's financial assets that are measured

at fair value at 31 December 2014.

e U WmER R

REEREE(E)

33

DRBEM(E)

TREFNAEER204%F 12 A3
BREAABEITENSRHEE

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET
Level 3 E3IE
Key management insurance classified as PERHEESREEL
available-for-sale financial assets EZERERR 15,653 —

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of
the Group's key management insurance contracts are credit rating, ages of
life insured persons and the discount rate. Significant increase/(decrease)
in crediting rating in isolation would result in a significantly higher/(lower)
fair value measurement. While significant increase/(decrease) in other
unobservable inputs in isolation would result in a significantly (lower)/higher

fair value measurement.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year

ended 3| December 2014 and 2013:

AEEEREEERRANNAA
BEFEMAEATIBEZGAR
EEFR  ASXRAFREFR
o FEFREEEN ORD)H
EYAnBEGERZLN O
D) At AR BRBAERER
n/ORd) - AEBHRENE L
RABEFERZOND) /M-

TREFIEBE20I4FER0I3F 12
A BILEEF=BIAZEH:

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER TAT

Beginning of the year F4 — —

Additions RE 16,415 —

Fair value loss ARERBE (762) —

End of the year (Note 8) FER(HFES) 15,653 —
Changes in unrealized losses for the year AFEEFAFRREMEERAR

included in other comprehensive income BREZAAHBREY
or loss at the end of the year 762 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

102

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements often requires the use of judgement to

select specific accounting methods and policies from several acceptable alternatives.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Contd)

@)

(b)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment,
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8. As at 3|
December 2014, goodwill of HK$630,000 is contributed by ASR Logistics
Company Limited (Vietnam) and Star Cargo Company Limited (Vietnam).
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations required the use of

estimates (Note 6).

Impairment of other non-financial assets

Other non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and investment in a subsidiary are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the related carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Determining whether impairment has
occurred typically requires various estimates and assumptions, including
determining which cash flows are directly related to the potentially impaired
asset, the useful life over which cash flows will occur, their amount, and the
asset's residual value, if any. In turn, measurement of an impairment loss
requires a determination of recoverable amount, which is based on the
best information available. To determine recoverable amount, the Group
uses cash flow estimates discounted at an appropriate discount rate, quoted

market prices when available and independent appraisals, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

4

104

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Contd)

(©

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables, including loan to
an associated company, based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. Provisions are applied to receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectable. The
identification of impairment of receivables requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for the
impairment of receivable is recognised in the year in which such estimates

have been changed.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
would impact the current income tax and deferred income tax provisions in

the period in which such determination is made.

Estimation of fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

Where the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets cannot be derived
from active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques that
include unobservable inputs. Changes in assumptions about these factors

could affect the reported fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MBI ERME
5  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP 5 ¥E BERRE-FEE
Leasehold Furniture
improve- and Office  Computer Motor
ments fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HERE GKMREE PORE SHERE AE st

HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$O0D  HK$O00  HK$000  HK$O000
TAL TAT TAT TAT TAT TAL

At | January 2013 R2013FIAIA

Cost AR 2,468 645 1,158 3732 6,437 14,440
Accumulated depreciation ZEHIE (1374) (367) (606) (1532) (2453) (6332)
Net book amount ARIEDHE 1,094 278 552 2,200 3,984 8,108

Year ended 31 December 2013 EZE20135F

2A3IALFEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 1,094 278 552 2,200 3,984 8,108
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — R B AR — — 5 14 — 19
Additions NE 538 129 452 470 — 1589
Disposals (Note 30(b)) HE (BE30(0)) — — — (20) (20)
Exchange difference et (1 (1 25 16 3 52
Depreciation (Note 22) e (ME22) (513) (108) (197) (620) (1,126) (2.564)
Closing net book amount FREEFE I8 298 837 2,080 2851 7,184
At 31 December 2013 2013128318
Cost AR 3,005 773 | 464 4233 6,64 15,739
Accumulated depreciation RETIE (1,887) (475) (627) (2,153) (3413) (8,555)
Net book amount BREFE 1118 298 837 2,080 2851 7,184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHE
5  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP (Cont'd) 5 9% BERRE-LEEE)
Leasehold Furniture
improve- and Office  Computer Motor
ments fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HELE BAREE BHORE BERE AE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T T TET TET TET
Year ended 3| December 2014  EZE20145F

RA3IBLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 1,118 298 837 2,080 2,851 7,184
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—HHE AR — 38 = = 47

(Note 32) (PE32)

Additions NE 186 1,497 179 884 4,990 7,736
Disposals (Note 30(b)) HE (HEE300)) — — 31 (24) (1,140) (1,195)
Exchange difference X =R (20) (ror 8 (14) ) (148)
Depreciation (Note 22) e (ME22) (561) (386) (250) (831) (1,333) (3,361)
Impairment (Note 21) AE (FE20) — (1,061 — — — (1,061)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 723 285 727 2,104 5,363 9,202

At 31 December 2014 M2014F 128318
Cost AR 3,167 2,191 1,543 5,082 7,699 19,682
Accumulated depreciation and  RFTHTE RRE (2,444) (1,906) (816) (2,978) (2,336) (10,480)

impairment

Net book amount BREFE 723 285 727 2,104 5,363 9,202

BEWI4FR0BFENAJNBILEE
T EHR S Bt AITHES -

All depreciation expenses for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 were

charged in administrative expenses.

R EEBRME061,000ETEHERA
[HtE5iE  F5E) -

Impairment of furniture and fixtures amounted to HK$ 1,061,000 was recognised in

“Other losses, net”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMNE
6  INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 6 HEYEE-AKHE
Computer
Goodwill software Total
Gk ERaM st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FRERT FERT
At | January 2013 201351818
Cost A 557 — 557
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 25T $5 K5 B - - -
Net book amount REFE 557 — 557
Year ended 3| December 2013 BZ2013F1283IHLELEFE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 557 — 557
Amortisation charge (Note 22) BiEFx (MTE22) - — —
Closing net book amount FREEFE 557 — 557
At 3| December 2013 20135128318
Cost ZZN 557 — 557
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 25T §H X R{E - - -
Net book amount RREDFE 557 — 557
Year ended 31 December 2014 BZE2014F 12831 LFE
Opening net book amount FREFE 557 — 557
Additions NE 630 2,235 2,865
Impairment charge (Note 21) RERX (FE21) (557) — (557)
Amortisation charge (Note 22) HiHm < (FiEE22) — (359) (359)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 630 1,876 2,506
At 31 December 2014 M2014F 128318
Cost ZZN 1,187 2,235 3422
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 25T $5 K5 B (557) (359) 916)
Net book amount HRmEHE 630 1,876 2,506
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

108

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP (Contd)

The carrying amount of the goodwill of Pacific Well (HK) Limited has been
reduced to its recoverable amount through recognition of an impairment loss
against goodwill. This loss has been included in ‘Other loss, net' in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. For ASR Logistics Company Limited
(Vietnam) and Star Cargo Company Limited (Vietnam), the recoverable amounts

approximated their book  values.

All amortisation expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014 were charged in

administrative expenses.

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY

BREE-FRE(E)
Bin(BFB)BERRRZKEEDEBE
REABREERAZAATUEEE - &%
BREFAGAEERAEXRHMESR
FME ] BEASR Logistics Company Limited
(Vietnam) } Star Cargo Company Limited
(Vietnam) M & * Al E @2 EEIREE
1BE -

HZEWA4FNAIBILFEE T8
HEBRFATHES °

RMBARARE-ARF

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FET

Unlisted investment, at cost EEMIRE (RHA) 127,703 126,764

/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e U WmER R
7 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Cont'd) 7 RHBATRE-ZXDR(E)
(a)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: @ MEARFEMT :
Particulars
of registered
Principal capitalfissued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations B3 e Interest held
2R AR A 3 3 FIRRBRERLE ERTRARE BRED
2014 2013
Directly held:
EERE:
ASR Champion Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") Investment holding US$! 100% 100%
RBRAES RERK EY
((RBRXES])
Indirectly held:
BEEE
ASR Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$2,000,000 100% 100%
00 HEZR 2,000,000 7T
AOE Freight (HK) Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$3,000,000 100% 100%
BAEERRRA B in Hong Kong 3,000,000 7T
BETENRHER
ASR Logistics Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
BAEMRBRAA B0 in Hong Kong 1,000,000/ 7T
BATENRHRER
ASR Infrastructure Limited Hong Kong Inactive HK$10,000 100% 100%
BR TREX 10,0007 7C
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mEMBHRERME

7

110

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd)

@)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

7

RKBARRE -ADE(E)
@) HEBLARHENT: (&)

Particulars
of registered
Principal capitalfissued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations Rl vV Interest held
2R AR A 3 3 IERBRERE ERTRARE BRED
2014 2013
ASR Europe Logistics Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$1,000,000 60% 60%
B in Hong Kong 1,000,000 % 7T
BATENRHER
ASR Worldwide Logistics Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
B in Hong Kong 1,000,000/ 7T
BETENRMER
ASRCO Logistics Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
AR ERRA] 0 in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7
BETENRHER
Star Pac Logistics Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Alir freight solution provider RM100,000 80% 80%
SRED in Malaysia 5% 1000007T
SRAGZENREERD
Star Pacific Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
AFEFERMRERAR B in Hong Kong 1,000,000/ 7T
BETENRMUER
Pacific Empire Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
(formerly known as “Starlite BE in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
Express International Limited") ERTEARMER
BARARAR (A28
SRERRAA )
AOE Freight (Shenzhen) Limited Peoplé's Republic Air freight solution provider RMB 10,000,000 100% 100%

(note (1))
HEEREERECRI)
BRAR(ME @)

of China (“PRC’)
AR LAE
([%E])

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

7 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Cont'd) 7 RHBATRE-ZXDR(E)
(a)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd) @) MEBLARFEWT: (&)
Particulars
of registered
Principal capitalfissued
Place of activities and share capital
Name incorporation place of operations Rl vV Interest held
2R AL 4 FIRRBRERLE ERTRARE BRED
2014 2013
Pacific Empire International PRC Alir freight solution provider RMB7,500,000 100% 100%
Limited (Shenzhen) (note (i)) H in the PRC AR #7,5000007T
BRABREERECRI) REEENRAER
AR AR ()
Bluestream Aviation Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HKS$! 100% 100%
£ in Hong Kong | BT
BRATENRHER
OA Cargo Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
5 in Hong Kong 1,000,000/ 7T
BATENRHRER
OA Cargo (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$10,000 100% 100%
0 in Hong Kong 10,000/87C
BETENRMUER
Pacific Empire (HK) Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$10,000 100% 100%
£ in Hong Kong 10,000/ 7T
BRETENRHER
Pacific Empire Cargo Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$10 100% 100%
B in Hong Kong 10T
BATENRHER
Pacific Empire International Limited ~ Macau Air freight solution provider MOP100,000 100% 100%
AFFFRERBRAT] BF in Macau 100,000 2F 7T

BT ENRHRER
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7

112

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd)

@)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

RKBARRE -ADE(E)
@) HEBLARHENT: (&)

Particulars
Principal of registered
Place of activities and capitalfissued
Name incorporation place of operations share capital
HRK Interest held
2R AR A 3 3 IERBRERE ERTRARE BRED
2014 2013
Star Cargo (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan Alir freight solution provider NTD5,000,000 100% 100%
BERTEERMRBRAE =) in Taiwan 316 %5,0000007T
RETENRHLERD
Star Cargo (Thailand) Limited Thailand Inactive BAHT3,000,000 100% 100%
*E LR 3000000 % &
Star Cargo Japan Limited Japan Air freight solution provider JPY350,000 100% 100%
Star Cargo k2 G4t BA in Japan 350,000 A
AAZE REER
Pacific Well (HK.) Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$100,000 100% 100%
B (BE)BRAF e in Hong Kong 100,000/ 7T
BRTENRIER
Oriental Way (HK.) Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$100,000 100% 100%
RE(BFE)BRAA BE in Hong Kong 100,000 57T
BRTENRIEER
ASR GSA Limited Hong Kong Alir freight soultion provider HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
BA in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7
BBTENRHUER
ASR (SE. Asia) Limited (note (v)) Hong Kong Investment holding HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
(HI3E (iv)) B REER 1,000,007 7
ASR (S.E. Asia) Pte Limited (note (iv)) Singapore Alir freight solution provider SGD100,100 100% 100%
(FH3E (iv)) gl in Singapore 100,100 % h03% 7T

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT

HINREES R HED



7

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd)

@)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

mEe

RHBERARRE-AQF(E)

B R M &

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd) @) MEBLARFEWT: (&)
Particulars
Principal of registered
Place of activities and capitalfissued
Name incorporation place of operations share capital
HRK Interest held
2R AL 4 FIRRBRERLE ERTRARE BRED
2014 2013
ASR Logistics Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Inactive RM2 100% 100%
(note (iv)) (PHEE (iv)) SRER TEex 5%
ASR E-commerce Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$100,000 100% 100%
(note (iv)) (PHEE (iv)) BE in Hong Kong 100,000 7T
BRATENRMEER
AOE India Freight Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$10,000 80% 100%
(note (v)) (BFEE (v) Bk in Hong Kong 10,0007 7T
BBTENRHEER
ASR Europe Oy Finland Alir freight solution provider EUR2,500 60% 60%
(note (i) (AIE (iv)) By | in Finland 21500E07T
SREENRMER
Star Cargo (Singapore) Pte. Ltd Singapore Alir freight solution provider SGD100,100 100% 100%
(note (iv)) (PHEE (iv)) AR in Singapore 100, 100 £ AN 7T
IR E N R
OA Cargo Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Air freight solution provider RM2 100% 100%
(note (iv)) (FIZE (iv)) SRAE in Malaysia 1 5%
SREGEENR
R
AQE-TKW Logistics (India) Private India Alir freight solution provider INR100,000 51% 5%
Limited (“AQE-TKW India’) 0E in India 100,000 ENE ELL
(note (v)) (BHEE (v) HEZERRMEER
ASR GSA (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan Air freight solution provider NTD5,000,000 100% -
RERFMERERE =L in Taiwan mak
BRAF BEEEHREER 500000070
(note (ii)) (I3 (i)
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7 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd)

@)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

7

RKBARRE -ADE(E)
@) HEBLARHENT: (&)

Particulars
Principal of registered
Place of activities and capitalfissued
Name incorporation place of operations share capital
HRK Interest held
2R AR A 3 3 IERBRERE ERTRARE BRED
2014 2013
Star AOE Logistics (Cambodia) Cambodia Inactive KHR20,000,000 100% -
Limited (note (il)) (P& (i) RIHZ S 20,000,000
LRGeSl
Star Cargo (Cambodia) Limited Cambodia Inactive KHR20,000,000 100% -
(note (ii)) (B (ii)) RIF%E Emex 20,000,000
REERA
PT. Pacific Empire Indonesia Indonesia Air freight solution provider RP2,500,000,000 49% -
(note (ii)) (P15 (i) e in Indonesia 2,500,000,000  (note (vi))
He=@rn R Et (Pt
(vi))
ASR Logistics Company Limited Vietnam Air freight solution provider VND3,000,000,000 99% -
(“ASR Vietnam'") i in Vietnam 3,000,000,000
(note (i) (FiT3E (ii)) W EE R REER BrEE
Wholetrans (HK) Limited Hong Kong Alir freight solution provider HK$10,000 60% -
(note (ii)) (P15 (i) e in Hong Kong 10,0007 7T
BEREELRHER
Star Cargo Company Limited Vietnam Inactive VND3,000,000,000 99% -
(“Star Cargo Vietnam') Hir TEex 3,000,000,000
(note (iih)) (I3 (iii)) HEE
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7 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd)

@)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

Notes:

(

)

(iii)

)

These subsidiaries are limited liabilities companies incorporated in PRC.

These subsidiaries were incorporated during the year ended 3| December
2014.

These subsidiaries were acquired during the year ended 31 December 2014.

These subsidiaries were incorporated during the year ended 3| December
2013.

These subsidiaries were acquired during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Although the Group owns not more than half of the equity interest in PT.
Pacific Empire Indonesia, it is able to control more than one half of the voting
rights in respect of relevant activities by virtue of the fact that all directors
are elected by the Group. Consequently, the Group consolidates PT. Pacific

Empire Indonesia.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-

controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for AOE-TKW India

and ASR Europe OY that have non-controlling interests that are material to

the group.

7 RMBARRE-RARE)
@) HEBLARHENT: (&)

Pt -

(i)

(v)

ZEMW B E BB MK
MAREERA -

ZEWBRARCREE20145F
A3 BLEFEFMRRYT

ZEWBREINEE2014F12
A3 B FFE U o

ZERBRREREE213F
A3 BLEFEFRRYT

ZERBRREREE2I13F
12831 BIEFERUEE -

EEAEEBEBPT. Pacific
Empire Indonesia®) X # 8
B—¥ MHRFEESH
AEBEL  FEEREHE
HREERB-FRER -
It - REEEPT. Pacific Empire
Indonesia& Hf AR ©

BEREAFERESNMBLRMN

TR REBFERER(H
AEEmEBEK)HAOE-TKW
India & ASR Furope OY HIEf #% & %}
BE -
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7 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Cont'd) 7 RHBARRE-XDR(E)

(a)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d) @ MEXARFEWOT: (&)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non- BEBEAFERESHHEQ RN
controlling interests (Cont d) HRENBE(E)

Summarised balance sheet EEABEREE
AOE-TKW India ASR Europe OY
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TRET T THET

Current e
Assets B 27,197 29,038 897 621
Liabilities Bl (22,393) (27,570) (9,124) (3,599)
Total current net assets/(liabilities) ERBEE,/(BE)FE 4,804 | 468 (8,227) (1,978)
Non-current FERH
Assets B 38 21 = 1,002
Liabilities Al (1 — (170) -
Total non-current net assets ?@#/ﬁ@bféﬁ/(gfé)

(liabilities) #E 37 21 (170) 1,002
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8E)FE 4,841 1,489 (8,397) (976)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd)

@)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-

controlling interests (Cont d)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

r e MR R R

RKBARRE -ADE(E)
@) HEBLARHENT: (&)

BREAFERESHMBLTN
RBERBER(E)

PHUERBE

AOE-TKW India

From date of
acquisition to

3| December

ASR Europe OY
From date of
incorporation to

3| December

2013 2013
zEa il v
e B HEEE
0135 20135
2014 12H318 2014 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TET
Revenue W 130,984 15,220 2,999 —
Profit/(loss) before income tax ~ BRETSFLATE R/ (&18) 4,795 (325) (7.929) (966)
Income tax expense PSR (1,376) 130 (79) (26)
Post-tax income/(loss)
from continuing operations SRCEEBHIER
and total comprehensive W/ (BB REE
income/(loss) Wi/ (B518) 1858 3,352 (234) (7.421) (1,001)
Total comprehensive income/ BT IEERAERD
(loss) allocated to 2EME
non-controlling interests (B1B)EH 1,985 (115) (2,968) (401)

Dividends paid to

non-controlling interests

B Xt T IR
BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

7 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Cont'd) 7 RHBATRE-ZXDR(E)

(a)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d) @) HMERARFEWOT: (E)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non- BEEAFZREZNHNELRMN
controlling interests (Cont d) MRERMEE)

Summarised cash flows ReREME
AOE-TKW Logistics
(India) Pvt Ltd ASR Europe OY
From date of From date of
acquisition to incorporation to
31 December 31 December
2013 2013
=R
HKER 3 A
BE013F BE2013F
2014 12A318 2014 12A318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRz TRT TRz TRT
Cash flows from operating activities A& E8IH &M=
Cash (used in)/generated meExB(mm),/
from operations RSk A (787) 2,507 (7,078) 243
Tax (paid)/refund (Frfe) /REBIE (2,357) 435 (79) (26)
Net cash (used in)/generated meEH(FA),/
from operating activities FrER&F8E (3,144) 2942 (7,157) 217
Net cash generated from
financing activities REEDAEREFHE — — 4373 2,135
Net cash generated from/(used in) & &EB)FT{S,/(FTA)
investing activities Bess | — (1) (1,002)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRkReEEY

and cash equivalents CRL)/EhnFsE (3,143) 2942 (2,895) 1,350
Cash, cash equivalents at

beginning of period HORe kR2EEY 4,600 1,700 1,340 —
Exchange (losses)/gain on cash ReRkReEEY

and cash equivalents 5 (&18), /e (66) 42) 680 (10)

Cash and cash equivalents

at end of period BRAERAEEEY 1,391 4,600 (875) 1,340

The information shown above was before inter-company eliminations. Lt ER AR EIRE A NS -
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7 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Contd)

(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

(0

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of control

On | January 2014, Oriental Way (H.K)) Limited disposed of 20%
interest in AOE India Freight Limited at a consideration of HK$2,000.
The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in AOE India
Freight Limited on the date of disposal was HK$147,000. The Group

recognised a loss of HK$ 145,000 as capital reserve in equity.

On 13 September 2013, Star Pacific Logistics Limited disposed of
20% of interest in Star Pac Logistic Sdn. Bhd. at a consideration of
HK$47,000. The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in
Star Pac Logistic Sdn. Bhd. on the date of disposal was HK$5,000.
The Group recognised the gain on disposal of HK$42,000 as capital

reserve in equity.

e U WmER R

7 RMELARARE-FDTE)
b) BFEREZEZIRZ

(i)

HERWBARMERQL
RRERHIE)

R14F1A1B REFE
) B AR A E 2,000
JU & R AOE India Freight
Limited20% 4 # © R i &
A H ' AOE India Freight
Limited < FEE i i BRI (B
A1470008 7L REBER
FE 25 7 3R /85 18 145,000 7 7T
REXRGEE -

R20I13FE9R 138 - KT+
EBMRARD B S Star
Pac Logistic Sdn. Bhd.#)20%
1z REAR470008 T -
Star Pac Logistic Sdn. Bhd. JE
EiRERNHE BN ERE
{B /50008 T - REER
BRETHNERREER L
E W 42,0007 ©

Annual Report £ & 2014 1 1 9
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mEMBHRERME

120

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

8 AHHESHEE

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Beginning of the year E4) —
Addition NE 16,415
Net loss transferred to other BREHMPEN G BRTE (762) —
comprehensive income
End of the year FR 15,653
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Key management insurance: BZERERR
Account value of the insurance contracts, RBEHNEFE  UETHE 15,653 -

denominated in US$

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Contd)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered into key
management life insurance contracts to insure three of its key management
personnel. Under the contracts, the beneficiary and policy holder is ASR Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the total insured sum is
approximately US$6,000,000 (equivalent to HK$46,800,000). The contracts will be
terminated on the occurrence of the earliest of the death of the key management
personnel insured or other terms pursuant to the contracts. Gross premium of a
total of US$2,104,000 (equivalent to HK$16,415,000) and a 6% premium charge
of US$126,000 (equivalent to HK$985,000) has been paid at inception. The Group
may request a surrender of the contracts at any time and receive cash back based
on the cash value at the date of withdrawal. A guaranteed interest rate of 4.2% per
annum applied to the contracts for the first five years, followed by the discretionary
portion with a minimum guaranteed interest rate of 2% per annum for the
following years until termination. The discretionary portion is subject to change with

reference to the credit rating.

At the inception, the guaranteed and discretionary portions of the contracts were
accounted for as available-for-sale debt and available-for-sale equity, respectively.
The surrender option is accounted for as a derivative. As at 31 December 2014,
the fair value of key management insurance contacts are determined based on the
account value and the Group considered that the financial impact of the option to
surrender the contracts were insignificant since the surrender charge is material to

the contracts.

As at 31 December 2014, the fair value of key management insurance contracts are
determined based on the account value. The key management insurance is pledged
as collateral for the Group's bank borrowings and bank guarantees amounting to
approximately HK$5,577,000 and HK$57,413,000 respectively (Note 34).

e U WmER R

AHEESHEE(Z)
BHEWA4FENABLEFEE £5H
R=EBIEEEATERR FTUFEE
BEASRRAN - REAH  Za&A
BEREE ABASR Limited( AR 2E
MEAR) - MBRERE LA 6,000000
ETT (1855 46,800,000 7T) © B ZIR
ZEEBEEALTBRARTIREESD
ZEMER - BN TR - BRE
2,104,000% 7T (18 % 12 16,415,000 7T )
K 126,000 3 7T (48 % 72 985,000 8 7T ) Z
HEER % ERFRBEZN - ARER
AR Z SRRSO RABERRE
SEEREAS ERFFE42%BH
RERFZEH BB ZFERREE
PMFREERFANE2UEZET UKL -
MEH S B2 EEERETINE

REIEE SO BREBEEHS 55
ARRAHHE BB RAEHE 2
B RREARRITEERRIA - R
014F12A318 TEEEERBAL
ZARNBEREHEET MASERA
BREREMBIRIABTETK 1t
DHERNERERHSAMEAERX

R14F 128318 T2ZEEERR
BRZARBERETEET - FEER
ERBUASEZRITEERRITER
7 7l 495,577,000 7T 57,413,000 7 7T 3K
1AM Em(H5E34)
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e P WmR R

9 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP 9

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

WA 8% - AR
EAEAT B AE RELH 3B A5
T

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Deferred income tax assets: EREFEHERE -
Deferred income tax assets to be recovered B 1218 A LA Y=
after more than 12 months BT EE 1,506 550
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEFEHEE -
Deferred income tax liabilities to be B 1218 A LA Y=
recovered after more than 12 months MELHSHAasE (822) (1,479)
684 (929)

Deferred income taxes of the Group represent temporary differences under the
liability method using taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date in the respective jurisdictions. The gross movements in deferred income

tax assets/(liabilities) during the years are as follows:

Withholding

tax relating

AEBNEEHERIREAEEER
A FEREEZEAEHNCEMIELER
OB ENERERE - BIEMEHR
BE/(BBERFANBEDERNT :

to unremitted Accelerated

earnings

tax

BBAKRE depreciation

HEF BN Tax losses Total

WENH HERFE AR aat

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TER TER

At | January 2013 R013FI1AIR (803) (618) 982 (439)
Recognised in the consolidated statement 4R A 2 EE &K T

of comprehensive income (Note 26) R (Fizke) (379) 230 (341 (490)

At 31 December 2013 20135 12A318 (1,182) (388) 641 (929)
Recognised in the consolidated statement 4R & 2 EKmE T

of comprehensive income (Note 26) R (Mizkae) 1,007 (593) 1,199 1,613

At 31 December 2014 R2014F12H31 B (175) (981) 1,840 684
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (Contd)

Withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China, in respect of earnings
generated after 31 December 2008. The Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China are
held by companies incorporated in Hong Kong and are subject to 5% withholding

tax.

Withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign
investment enterprises established in Taiwan. The Group's subsidiary in Taiwan is
held by a company incorporated in Hong Kong and is subject to 20% withholding

tax.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had not recognised deferred income
tax assets in respect of tax losses of approximately HK$43,022,000 (2013:
HK$23,171,000). Except for tax losses amounting to HK$30,252,000 (2013:
HK$18,213,000) that can be carried forward indefinitely to offset against future
taxable income, the Group's remaining unrecognised tax losses will expire in the

following years:

e U WmER R

EEFMBH-—FxKE(E)
TE R B A X 37 RO SNE 1R % 3t 2008 5 12
AIBUBREEAMBRRMIBEREES
EKREBHRENR - AREFEAM
BB AR REEBEMA LMD B
B BHR 5% ATEMF

HEEBKIMNECERMIBEIREES
KREBHIEHN - AREE BEMN
MEBARRERAZIMAUNRARA
I B35 20% A TEFH ©

R14F 128318 AEE® K
T B B 49430220005 TT(20134F :
231710008 ) BRELEMBHEE -
B % 8 &5 1830252,0008 JT(20134F :
18,213,000 7T ) A] & I H b 4% 85 R /R4 8
RREZHIAIN - ZEBRHB T RER
AREB BN ATEEE, -

Group

BN 3
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
2015 60 60
2016 42 42
2017 32 32
2018 2,363 4,030
2019 4,099 696
2020 — 98
2023 177 —
2024 5,997 —
12,770 4958
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me M BEHRRMEE
10 TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 0 BZEWRE-£A%E
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Trade receivables 2 S WG E 145,591 133,592
The Group's sales are mainly made on (i) cash on delivery; or (i) credit terms of 30 AEEMEETER (i) EEE S
to 60 days. (302 60 B E ST -
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the ageing analysis of trade receivables based R20145 R2013F 128318 BIFE
on invoice date was as follows: ZAHMELNE FREFENRE DT
W
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
—0to 30 days —0230K 96,296 79,980
— 31 to 60 days —31E60K 30,326 37,864
- 61 to 90 days —61290K 10,854 [1716
— Over 90 days —90KA L 8,115 4032
145,591 133,592
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (Contd) 10

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of approximately HK$76,793,000 (2013:
HK$55,476,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

e U WmER R

ESRURE-XEE(E)
R2014F 128318+ 8476793,000/%
J(2013%F 554760008 L) M E 5 &
WHIBC BEERANE EHZEEN
TREXGCENBURFER 258
SRNFIERNRROTAT :

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FET

— | to 30 days — 230K 49,345 37714
- 31 to 60 days —31E60K 16,708 13,284
— 61 to 90 days —61 290K 2,755 1,088
— Over 90 days —90KRM L 7,985 3,390
76,793 55476

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables were denominated in the

following currencies:

AEBESRUSENEREN TFIE
I -

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000

TEr FHET

~ HK$ — BT 60,341 62,897
~RMB - AR¥ 33,095 34221
~INR —-HEEL 24,356 23,666
~RM - 5% 16,260 1,043
~ US$ -7 6,382 4240
- JPY —A 2,570 3072
— Other currencies —HihEH 2,587 4,453
145,591 133,592

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the balance sheet date is the fair values

of the trade receivables. The Group did not hold any collateral as security.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the carrying amounts of trade receivables

approximated their fair values.

NEEEERNSZAEERRAESE
KRENDAEE - AEELEFEE
AR IEER

M2014F K2013F 128318 E5E
WHIERRAEEE DA BERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE
Il PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES I EAHRE ZEREGEKHR
The nature of prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at 31 December R2014F F2013F 12318 BRAK
2014 and 2013 was as follows: B Re REMENGIENEENT
Group Company
A&HE ARAH
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr TAET TERr TAT
Prepayments AR FIE 2,029 5,186 = —
Deposits ®e 5,664 3,430 — —
Other receivables Hoth e kIR 4,994 3518 40 —
12,687 12,134 40 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (b)) EWFIEBRRIFIA (Mizk(®b)) — — 180,750 237,662
12,687 12,134 180,790 237,662
Less: non-current portion: B 3EREES
Deposits ®e (582) (1,441) — —
Prepayments and other receivables FARNKIER — (3,741) — —
H o el 508
12,105 6,952 180,790 237,662
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd) [ BEARE - ZeREtERREE)

Notes: L

(@)  As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the carrying amounts of other receivables, @  R2014FER20I3F12A318 - EfbE
deposits and amounts due from subsidiaries approximated their fair values. WHIE - w2 REWIEB A RFIEL

FREEEARAEEMEE -

(b)  The amounts due from subsidiaries were unsecured, non-interest bearing and b) REEHNBLAFEAZRER 281K
repayable on demand. JRRERIEE -
The balance was denominated in the following currencies: AT IIE®SIME -
Group Company
K%M AL
2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TAT TR TAL

— HK$ —BT 4,669 4978 180,790 237,662
—RMB —ARH 1,905 2691 — —
—US$ —E7T 3,116 1,169 — —
— Other currencies —Hih & 2,997 3,296 — —

12,687 12,134 180,790 237,662
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

12 PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2 BEAER RERFLZEED
Group Company
AEE ADT
2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TR TR TAT

Cash at bank and on hand IRITRFERS 228,808 252,534 6,813 51516
Pledged cash at bank (note (a)) EERRTRE (@) 3,665 24,303 — —
Pledged short-term bank deposits BIIRREHIRITER

(note () GEIR) 3,302 2,579 — —
Pledged deposits [RELREYESA 6,967 26,882 — —
Total cash and bank balances Be RIBITHBETE 235,775 279416 6,813 51516
Note: Wﬁf :

(@)  Asat 3] December 2014 and 2013, the amounts were pledged to banks to secure ()  M2014FR20I13F12A318 - ZZFHEEH

certain loans facilities of certain subsidiaries and guarantees provided to airline BYRT EAATHBRRANE TERE
suppliers (Note 34). EARRME FHMZE R EEFOERNER
(HzE34) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEmERHE
PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd) 2 CEAER - HERBRLSENE)
Total cash and bank balances were denominated in the following currencies: RBe RFITHERKEEANTIEEIIE
Group Company
by b
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FTART FET TR FET
~ HK$ —ATT 100,146 169,153 6813 51516
~RMB —AR¥ 55,787 63,106 — —
~-RM — 5% 43,467 705 — —
~US$ —%7T 21,442 17,894 — —
- JPY —H 4,079 11,965 — —
- NTD —ak 3,073 7,135 — —
~INR —HEEL 1,391 4,600 — —
- MOP —BFT 3,742 2,036 — —
—EUR —BT 446 1,800 — —
— Other currencies —Hiy g 2,202 1,022 — —
235,775 279416 6813 51516

Cash in bank earned interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rate. As
at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents

approximated their fair values.

As at 31 December 2014, the effective interest rates on pledged short-term
bank deposits were 1.2% (2013: 0.3%) per annum, and these deposits have an
approximate average maturity of 58 days (2013: 33 days).

The Group's RMB balances are placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies in the PRC is subject to rules and regulations of foreign exchange

control promulgated by the PRC government.

ROMESEERRTFERAEZHE
B R014F R2013F 128318 B
e RBeEEYNREEEEQRER
BE o

R4FENANBE EEBEHR
TREINERENER1.2%(2013%F :
03%) * M#ZEFFRFHLR8H(2013
F:33H)RIHE -

TEENARBERFRR S EAOR
T ARBLFTERILBRES - HF
CRREUARBIENESRAEAR
S 78 X o B HURT AR 00 0 SN 15145 B
FOERRERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

13 SHARE CAPITAL 13 BE
Number of shares Share capital
BH#E L
(thousands) HK$’000
(FR) TiEr
Ordinary Shares, authorised: EE BB
At | January 2013 R2013F1818 2,000,000 20,000
Effect of shares subdivision (Note a) BOFANTE (HiTa) 2,000,000 —
At 3| December 2013 and 2014 P2013F K2014F 12831 4,000,000 20,000
Number of shares Share capital
B2 E [LEN
(thousands) HK$'000
(FR) TER
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BEITRAREBR
At | January 2013 M2013F1A18 400,000 4,000
Effect of shares subdivision (Note a) BT E (fita) 400,000 —
At 3| December 2013 M2013F 128318 800,000 4,000
Exercise of share options 1Tl RRRE 6,860 34
At 3| December 2014 M2014F 128318 806,860 4,034
Note a: With effective from 24 May 2013, each share of the Company of HK$0.0! per fiFa:  B2013F5A24B8  KARER
share was subdivided into 2 shares of HK$0.005 per share. The number of share 0.01BTHBRMNEFRALE2RER
capital and share options will be increased accordingly. Share capital is therefore 0005/ TR o AR I BB AR HE 2
presented on a post share subdivision basis. BRI - Eit - RARKG

FAREREZT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRHE
RESERVES 14 @
Group AEE
Available- Share-
for-sale based
Statutory  financial  payment
and legal assets  reserve
Capital reserves revaluation  (Note (c))
reserve (Note (b)) reserve  (HiEE(c))
Share (Note (2) Exchange (MizE(p) WHHE  URH Retained
premum  (f&E@)  reserves  EER SWMEE AEBH  Subtowl  earning Total
RiVEE EARE EXRE SLRE EERER ARNRE M RERN &5
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
Tén TEx TExr TEn TEnr TEx FEx FEx  TER
Balance at | January 2013 R013% | A I B ISR 72,565 6161 2269 1719 - 94 82808 152832 235640
Currency translation differences [E X Z % - - 1325 - - - 1325 - 1325
Dividends R - - - - - - — (364000  (36400)
Partial disposal of a subsidiary ~ (HEHAHBLF
to non-controlling interest FIEBRER - 4 - - - - 4 - 4
Acquisition of additional interest [FIEERR &3 Mde
in a subsidiary from R—TENERR
non-controling interest e - 213) - - - - Qn) - @213)
Share-based payment AR RERNR - - - - - 425 | 425 - 1425
Transfer to statutory reserve.~ BREATRE - - - 956 - - 956 (956) -
Profit for the year ERH| - - - - - - — 93050 93050
Balance at 3| December 2013 20136 12431 BAO£EE 72,565 5990 35% 2675 - 1519 86343 208526 294869
Currency transhation diferences [ % 38 - - 54 - - - 54 — 54
Fair value loss on AftHESREREY
avallable-for-sale N EEER
financial assets — - - — (762) - (762) — (762)
Dividends R 27.47) — — — — —  (747) (23378 (261,029)
Partial isposal of a subsidiary  HEHAHBAT]
to non-controlling interest FIeBRER - (145) - - - - (145) — (145)
Exercise of share options T mRE 6,43 = = = = - M - M
Share-based payment AR BERRMH — - - = = 939 939 = 939
Transfer to statutory reserve.~ BEREATRE - - - 195 - - 195 (195) -
Proft for the year R — - - = = = A LA KA1V
Balance at 31 December 2014 20145 12431 HAEE 51,561 5845 3448 2870 (762) 2458 65620  (12334) 53286
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

14

132

RESERVES (Cont'd)

Notes

@)

(b)

ASR

Capital reserve

Capital reserve recorded during the year ended 31 December 2014 and
2013 represented the gain/loss on equity transactions with non-controlling

interests as detailed in Note 7.

Statutory and legal reserves

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies are required
to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit to the fund until such fund
reaches 50% of the companies' registered capital. The statutory reserve fund
can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of the companies,
provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the

companies’ registered capital.

Subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan is required to set aside a minimum 0%
of the subsidiary's profit after taxation to the legal reserve, until the reserve

balance has reached the subsidiary's capital.

Subsidiary incorporated in Macao is required to set aside a minimum of 25%
of the subsidiary's profit after taxation to the legal reserve until the balance
of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the subsidiary's capital in

accordance with the Macao Commercial Code #377.

Logistics Holdings Limited * B¥¥RERAEMRA T

14

()

B aE

(2)

BAfE

HE2014FR2013F 128318 1E
FEARNE RN EEREIELER
BaREERHNE/BE &
BEE PRI o

EEREGERE

BEEBREERRER P -
ARVEG AR 0% D EEE
¢ EZBHESERAHMER
H)50% Bl « ZEREESTRE
ERIEEATEA - EH R
EEIEMARZMER  HEB
BEBERTRREMER25%H

RIEENR

R EEMALAHE R B ZARH
BRABRRRENRED 106 BAS
A EERRBEREDMBL
AR A LE

REBRPIEEIE 377 15 - TVRFT
REMAKSZ OB B 2 RIZER A IR B R
wARD 5% BARLERRE  BEE
@A e SR E AL IR AR #) 50%
Bk e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 RESERVES (Contd)

©

Share-based payments

Share options are granted to selected employees. The exercise price of the
granted options is equal to the market price of the shares plus 0.55% on the
date of the grant. Options are conditional on the employee completing two
years' service (the vesting period). The options are exercisable starting two
years from the grant date. The options have a contractual option term of 3.5
years. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or

settle the options in cash.

e U WmER R

14 f&E(E)

(©)

RGO BERNTH

ERESETEIENES - T
REmBERENTEERRLA
HAR AR (D T /B HN0.55%  FE AR HE Y
Gt hREBERBHRME (AT
) o BRETAKEB SR
MERIRTTE - BRENA LB
BHRA3SF - AEE Y E/AR
B3k PATR & B B AR I A5 E ok
HETET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

14

134

RESERVES (Cont'd) 14 f&EE)

(c)  Share-based payments (Contd) () HUBRGBREBOSRE)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related AT REARITEBRESE NE
weighted average exercise prices are as follows: B R HBRMETHTEE

2014 2013

Average Average

exercise exercise

price in HK$ price in HK$
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option (thousands)

BHBREN B BRES

FHTHEE FHTRE
(RExst) BREFH)  OUBxTE) RE(TH)
At | January RIAIE 0915 15,960 1.830 7,980
Granted B — — - -
Forfeited 22 0915 (2,200) — —
Exercised 217 0915 (6,860) — —
Expired EER — — — —

Effect of share subdivision Rin A&

(Note (a)) (H3E(a)) — — (0915) 7,980
At 31 December RI12A318 0915 6,900 0915 15,960

As at 31 December 2014, out of the 6,900,000 (2013: 15,960,000)

outstanding options, all (2013: nil) were exercisable.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT

2014128318 + 6,900,000{7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES (Cont'd) 14

(©

Share-based payments (Contd)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry
date and exercise prices:

e U WmER R

RE(E)

(©)

URGBRERNAR(E)

FREATEBRENER B H
RiTHEEMT :

Options
(thousands)
R (F12)
Exercise price
in HK$ per Number of Number of
Expiry date — 7 June 2016 share option share options share options
SHEREN (thousands) (thousands)
THEE (T 7) B (F7)
ERBEH-2016F6A7H (BB Tar) 2014 2013
2013 — — —
2014 — — _
2015 — — —
2016 0.915 6,900 15,960
Note: ik

(@)  With effective from 24 May 2013, each share of the Company of HK$0.01
per share was subdivided into 2 shares of HK$0.005 per share. The number
of share capital and share options will be increased accordingly. Share options

are therefore presented on a post share subdivision basis.

The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2012 determined using
the Binomial option pricing model was HK$0.36 per option. The significant
inputs into the model were weighted average share price of HK$1.82 at
the grant date, exercise price shown above, volatility of 39.02%, dividend
yield of 5.55%, an expected option life of 3.5 years, and an annual risk-free
interest rate of 0.19%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation
of continuously compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis
of daily share prices over the last year. The fair value of options granted is
adjusted to HK$0.18 per share upon the share subdivision as disclosed in
Note (a). See Note 23 for the total expense recognised in profit or loss for

share options granted to employees.

() B20I13F5A248 % AR A
Bik0.01ETHRG 2 HFAR2
RER0.005B THIRG © IRA
TR e BB G AR LS N -
I - BRE R AR Lk

B

R0NEMB B BRETEER
AETMER L BRERNINETE
HRARBEABNERE6E
Lo RERATANEZRAER
REH BB mEraRE 82
AL EXFRTEE - KR
39.02% - BR B E5.55% « FEHIEE
BREFE3SF RERRF A X
0.19% ° EIFEL A B0 @ I|IT
REFENRE - DREBEEFSE
AREBHGEFTHTAITEL - B
fizr) BN RN FAE - 2%
HERENAABEREZSR
0.18%TT - FHERERIEM
EERENBREMERNER
¥ E2RME23 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P BT
|4  RESERVES (Contd) 14 f&EE)
(d)  Reserves at Company level d) RRNRE
Company
ARF
Share-based
payment
reserve
Share BRGAR Retained
premium HEEw earnings Total
ROEE  AREE  REERN Ast
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TR TET
Balances at | January 2014 201451 A | B4R 197,804 1,519 162,343 361,666
Dividend RS (27,247) = (233,782) (261,029)
Employee share option scheme B TRRETE
-Value of employee services —-BIRBKERE
(Note 23) (P5E23) — 939 — 939
Exercise of share options TR E 6,243 — — 6,243
Profit for the year F A% A — — 82,148 82,148
Balance at 31 December 2014 20145 12 A3 BEY R 176,800 2,458 10,709 189,967
Representing; 5
Reserves s 10,709
Proposed dividend =41 35N —
10,709
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RESERVES (Cont'd)

(d)  Reserves at Company level (Contd)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e U WmER R

14 f&E(E)

d) ATENREEE)

Company
ARF
Share-based
payment
reserve
Share BRGAR Retained
premium HEEw earnings Total
ROEE  AREE  REERN Ast
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FiERr TER
Balances at | January 2013 201351 A | B4R 197,804 94 25,058 222956
Dividend RS — (36,400) (36,400)
Employee share option scheme B TRRETE
— Value of employee —-BIRBKERE
services (Note 23) (PR3E23) — 1,425 — 1,425
Profit for the year F A% — — 173,685 173,685
Balance at 3| December 2013 72013512731 HEVEE R 197,804 1519 162,343 361,666
Representing: I8 -
Reserves i 27,943
Proposed dividend BEERE 134,400
162,343
TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP 15 EBZENHE-F5E
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR
Trade payables B HRENIE 167,473 89,619
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE MR
I5 TRADE PAYABLES — GROUP (Contd) 15 EBEZEMRE-FXEE (£)
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the ageing analysis of trade payables based on P2014F R2013F 12A318 @ BIFHEE
invoice date was as follows: B EMEL B8 5 R IR BRI A AT
N
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
—01to 30 days -0E30K 67,092 50,749
- 31 to 60 days -31260K 27,779 20,163
— 61 to 90 days — 61 E90K 12,650 6,236
- 91 to 120 days -91E 120K 10,311 1,857
— Over 120 days - 120K £ 49,641 10,614
167,473 89,619
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables were denominated in the AEEESENFIBNREAENTIE
following currencies: BHE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
— HKS - 32,170 49,951
- US$ -7 65,929 26,473
-RM — 5% 57,117 2,349
~RMB - AR% 8,765 9,707
— Other currencies —Hin g% 3,492 1,139
167,473 89,619
As at 3| December 2014 and 2013, the carrying amounts of trade payables 20145 %20135F 124318 - EFEN
approximated their fair values. FENREEEERR EBERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR
16 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS l6 HtESREREGER
Group Company
rEE KAF
2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TAT TR TAL

Accruals e &R 29,382 21,751 276 276
Deposits received Bliige 9,126 8,841 — —
Other payables Hip IR 350 1,535 — —
38,858 32,127 276 276
Amount due to a subsidiary (Note (b)) T —FEIMT B A FI5IE
GEIO) — — — 50,000
38,858 32,127 276 50,276
Notes: (i
(@)  Asat 3] December 2014 and 2013, the carrying amounts of other payables, accruals ()  R20I14F R2013F12A318 « HAbfE
and amount due to a subsidiary approximated their fair values. MR EFAERREN-—HNEL

AIFEMREERE AR EERAE -

(b)  As at 31 December 2013, the amount was unsecured, non-interest bearing and by  R20I13F12A318  ZEFEER
repayable on demand. B REREBRERER
The balance was denominated in the following currencies: AT EHIIE -
Group Company
FEE ERF
2014 2013 2014 2013

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TAT TR TAT

- HK$ — BT 13,812 9,964 276 50,276
~RMB —AR¥ 18,124 17,675 — —
~GBP — R4 2,626 1,655 — —
—EUR — BT 1,624 | 489 — —
— Other currencies —H g 2,672 [,344 — —

38,858 32,127 276 50276

Annual Report £ & 2014 1 39



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

140

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES- GROUP

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets would revert

to the lessor in the event of default.

REHERE-FKE

HREHEEENRFREEOKEM
HHEA SHEARER EARER -

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Gross finance lease liabilities MEMERGBERE
— minimum lease payments —REBEERNK
No later than | year —F LR 84 8
Later than | year and no later than 5 years —FUERFUA 184 —
268 8
Future finance charges RRFEE R (25) )
Present value of finance lease liabilities AMEHEBENRE 243 U
The present value of finance lease AMEHEREN
liabilities is as follows: REWMT
No later than | year —F R 73 7
Later than | year and no later than 5 years —FRERFUR 170 —
243 7

The carrying amount of the finance lease liabilities as at 31 December 2014 and

2013 were denominated in EUR and NTD respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, the amount was secured by a bank guarantee.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BORROWINGS — GROUP

e U WmER R

45 - A%

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FAT

Bank overdraft RITEX 875 —
Bank borrowings RITIE 32,735 —
33,610 —

As at 31 December 2014, bank borrowings were due for repayment within one

year and had been classified as current liabilities.

The Group had total banking facilities of approximately HK$ 230,026,000, of
which approximately HK$33,610,000 bank borrowings and HK$80,087,000 bank
guarantees were utilised as at 31 December 2014. Pursuant to the terms set out in
certain banking facilities granted to the Group, the tangible net worth of the Group
should not be less than HK$120,000,000.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group breached the covenant requirement of
certain banking facilities. The facilities from these banks were HK173,600,000, of
which approximately HK$24,674,000 bank borrowings and HK$58,513,000 bank
guarantees (Note 34) had been drawn down and utilised as at 31 December 2014.
As at the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements, no waivers had
been obtained from these banks from complying with the covenant. The breach
of the restrictive financial covenant requirement constitutes an event of default
in accordance with the bank facility arrangements, which may cause the relevant
banking facilities be voided, cancelled, terminated, reduced or not renewed , such
that the existing bank guarantees of HK$58,513,000 might be terminated any time,
and these banks might also request for immediate repayment of the outstanding
borrowings of HK$24,674,000. Since the bank borrowings under these facilities

were due on demand, no reclassification or adjustment was necessary.

M2014F 128318 RITERER 1 F
NEHEN RoBEARDES -

ASEHEBRTEE B 230,026,000
B L B R2014F 128318 F
FBE #4933,61000078 70 8R 17 15 3 R
80,087,000 BT RITER - BREE TAE
BeETRITARENGR  2EEET
BEFEET DR 120,000,000 87T ©

R4 128318 KX & B # Rk
ETROIBRENZAOBRTE REZ
FW|RTHFE RI1736000007% 7T -
H b #49246740008 THRITERRL
HK$58,513,000 7 7T R 1T HE 4R (Pff 7 34) 7%
0I4F12A3IBE®H THALEF A
RitEG R BREABH YEEZE
RITEGETEO HE - RERTH
BLH ERZERHERERZORTE
ZEBKED TS BUEMARTA
BRAR - BUE - R1E - RO AT EE
B HORBRITHEIR 58,513,000 B8R
AR R - RZZRITINA 88
SKALBMEE R EEIEK24,6740008TC
EEM%@%TW%H%ME&K*@
CHENEELENHBHAE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P WmR R

I8 BORROWINGS — GROUP (Contd)

18 EX-A&KEE)

The balance was denominated in the following currencies: A TSI E S ETE -
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
EUR BT 875 _
HK$ BT 32,735 —
33,610 —

[9  INVESTMENT IN AND LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY -

GROUP

(@) Investment in an associated company

19 R-EBHEARZRERN—EBE
AREHZER - F&KE
() R-EBEATZIRE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAL

Investment, at cost

Associate

Details of investment in an associated company as at 3| December 2014 are

as follows:

R4F1A31H R—THBERE2ERE
HEWT

Place of % of
business/of ownership Principal Measurement
Name of entity incorporation interest activity method
Bg AR 3]
EREAR B33t B EEot FEREK TE%
Castel Hong Kong Limited fBEERRAR Hong Kong 10%  GPS tracking Equity
B 10% services R

GPS Bt i 75
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT IN AND LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY -
GROUP (Contd)

(@)  Investment in an associated company (Cont d)
Castel Hong Kong Limited is a private company and there is no quoted

market price available for its shares.

e U WmER R

R-BBELNT 2 RERE—BHE

RRAFEHZER -X&EH(E)

@) R-BHERAZREE)
MBEEARARBLEDNR B
BAn Y TR R E o

Loan to

Investment in an associated
an associated company
company (note (b))

A — 2 AT

R R 2B

AFRE (FHEE (b))
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TAT
Balances at | January 2014 20145 | A1 B&# I 3,600
Acquisition of ASR Vietnam WEEASR Vietnam 588 —
Share of loss of Castel Hong Kong Limited FiEMBRBERARER (1 (529)
Share of loss of ASR Vietnam FEIEASR VietnamE518 (134) —
Disposal of ASR Vietnam on acquisition of PAEASHE IR B ASR Vietnam
control (Note 32) (P5E32) (454) —
Balances at 3| December 2014 201451231 BiE# — 3071

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the

associated company.

(b)  Loan to an associated company
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, loan to Castel Hong Kong Limited was
non-cancellable, without a pre-determined maturity date, unsecured and
non-interest bearing. The carrying amount of the balance was denominated

in HK$ and approximated its fair value.

MEEBMAKEREE AR ZERN
AR -

pE

by MH—EHEARNELHZER
FA2014%F K20I3F12A318  [A
mAEEERAREL 2 ERAT
ARG BEETEHHA  BEAR

B EREEENSTHE B
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20  SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 20 HERIBEH
The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally ARAA—EIREERAR - MEKES
engaged in the provision of air freight service in the wholesale market. REAFERENIETHREZTER
% o
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive Directors. FTEEERFACHRIRRITES -
The executive Directors review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess TEERIAEENABRER - ATHE
performance and allocate resources. Management has determined the operating FERREER BEEERBEZEFRE
segments based on these reports. EELEDT -
The executive Directors assess the performance of the business from a WITEENHEAE(BREERENE
geographical perspective, i.e. by destinations of freight services. B3 AT R BRI -
The segment information provided to the executive Directors for the reportable BEWI4FNASIBLEE 7=
segments for the year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows: ERABRRD BERENDHERAT -
Europe America Asia-Pacific Africa Total
M EY) TAME FEM Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TEx TER TER
Sales to extemal customers  [RISMNIBE FIHE 109,892 77,962 619,653 99,966 907,473
Cost of sales HER K (99,952) (74025)  (484.245) (85599)  (743821)
Segment results DEEE 2216 30,186 3,204 36,483
Unallocated expenses, net RO ECH + /558 (9:486)
Depreciation e (3,361)
Amortisation i (359)
Operating profit R 23,277
Finance income, net BMEWA - R 221
Share of losses of eGSR R B 1R
associated companies (664)
Profit before income tax  FRET1SHL AT H 22,834
Income tax expense FTSRAY (9,951)
Profit for the year F A A 12,883

Revenue of approximately HK$903,600,000 and HK$3,873,000 were derived from

air freight service and sea freight service, respectively.

144
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont ) 20 HERSPHER(E)

None of the Group's customers had individually accounted for over 10% of the E E2014F R20I3F12A318 I£ F

Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. B AREVEZTFEMNGAEE RS
#810% °

The segment information provided to the Executive Directors for the reportable BZEWBFENANBLEFE #1772

ERA BRI BEREN D BERNT

segments for the year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:

Europe America Asia-Pacific Africa Total

BN EM ZAME FEM st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET

Sales to extemal customers  [AIFMNIBE FIHE 124,387 82,560 506,437 93,329 806,713
Cost of sales SRR (319,062) 81,135 (592,002)
Segment results DEPEAE 105,214 6,848 120,564
Unallocated expenses, net  RAOFLFHY + /F58 (7471)
Depreciation e (2,564)
Operating profit R 110,529
Finance income, net MEWA - R 557
Profit before income tax ~ FRFT1SHE AT & A 111,086
Income tax expense FrSHiF (18380)
Profit for the year F A% A 92,706

Revenue of approximately HK$805,219,000 and HK$ 1,494,000 were derived from

air freight service and sea freight service, respectively.

B MR M R E £ R 7RI
7%805,219,00078 7T K 1,494,000 BT °
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P S B
21 OTHER LOSSES, NET AND OTHER INCOME 20 HtrfR o FEREMERA
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TAT
Other losses, net Hivk5E - T8
Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment  IHEWE - B E R EK 420 |
Net foreign exchange losses B EETE (4,180) (2,199)
Gains on acquisition of AOE-TKW India W AOE-TKW India iz = 874
Gain on remeasuring previously held interest RKEREHNTE 2 AIR
in ASR Vietnam ASR Vietnam £ 5 2 ## < W
on acquisition (Note 32) (Ff5E32) 134 —
Impairment on goodwill (Note 6) BEREE) (557) —
Impairment on property, plant
and equipment (Note 5) W - BB RERBRE(MES) (1,061) —
Others HAh (2) 22)
(5,266) (1,346)
Other income Hislt A
Service income R 1,863 —
Others Hit 966 —
2,829 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative expenses are analysed as

22

BHEHT X

AR E R R AT BR324 4

follows: N
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TRT
Cost of sales HEKA 743,821 592,002
Employee benefit expenses, including EERAAX
directors’ emoluments (Note 23) (BEESHM) (M 23) 84,898 60,693
Depreciation (Note 5) HE(MEES) 3,36l 2,564
Amortisation (Note 6) B (e e) 359 —
Operating lease rentals for buildings BFELEHERS 11,655 8,034
Auditor’s remuneration 2GS 2,353 1,721
Marketing and promotion MSHEEREE 9,171 9,051
Legal and professional fees ERREXER 4,697 4,170
Travelling i3 7,277 6,108
Communication Bt 2,849 2328
Bad debts written off M — 234
Others Hith 11,318 7933
Total cost of sales and administrative expenses HERARITHRAX B 881,759 694,838
Cost of sales recognised as expenses mainly included flight charges from airlines and ERARXNEERN AT EREMER

other freight forwarders.

AR EERERNER -
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23

148

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES EERANEX
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr TAT
Salaries, bonus and other welfares e RAREMER 77418 54,477
Pension - defined contribution plans (Note (a)) RIRE — ERATE B (5T ) 6,541 4791
Share-based payments SARR AR R ERE A1 30 939 1,425
84,898 60,693
Note: BT
(@)  Pension - defined contribution plans @) EBARE-TEMHENKFTE

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF
Scheme") in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of
their gross earnings with a ceiling of HK$ 1,500 (2013: HK$1,250) per month
to the MPF scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in future

year.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes covering its full time PRC employees. The schemes are
administered by the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC eligible employees are required to make contributions based
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC and the relevant government authorities undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC. No forfeited contribution

is available to reduce the contribution payable in future year.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees or retirees other than the

defined contribution payments as disclosed above.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERME
24 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 24 EERSREEESHMH
Directors’ emoluments @) ESFHM
The emoluments of individual director of the Company during the years FsE23FT i R NEt AE BAEF
which were included in the employee benefit expenses as disclosed in Note B B A2 AE B E = 5 B E S
23 are set out below: NN
Pension-
defined
contribution
plans
Salariesand  Discretionary Bhe
Name of Director Fees allowances bonus -EH8 Total
EEpg wE  HERER BiEA GG | @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TARL TER TARL TER
Year ended 3| December 2014 HEWM4ENANBLEE
Exeautive Directors HiTEE
~YuHo Yuen, Sumny — &R — 2970 2,000 17 4987
—Mak Chi Hung, Richard BT — 2450 2,000 17 4467
- Law Kai Lo, Niki - — 2,540 2,000 17 4557
Independent B
Non-Executive Directors FHITEE
~Weifin Cai =5 480 = = = 480
- Zhang Xianlin —REM 480 - - - 480
~Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony -E#E 540 — — — 540
1,500 7,960 6,000 51 15511
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24

150

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 24 EEREHREEEHFME)
Directors’ emoluments (Cont d) @ EBHFME)
Pension-
defined
contribution
plans
Salaesand ~ Discretionary &ihe
Name of Director Fees allowances bonus -8 Total
ER 2 e HekEH BT a2l @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TAL TATL THL TATL THL
Year ended 31 December 2013 HEWBENAIBLER
Executive Directors HTEZE
~Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny —RER - 2662 — 15 2677
— Mak Chi Hung, Richard —RE — 2142 - 15 2,157
- LawKai Lo, Niki ~BER - 2142 - 15 2157
Independent BV
Non-Executive Directors HHTEE
~WeiJin Ca —RRT 400 — — — 400
~ Zhang Xanlin —REM 400 — — — 400
~Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony -E#E 460 - - - 460
1,260 6,946 - 45 8,51

The remuneration shown above represents remuneration received from
the Group by these directors in their capacity as employees to the Group
and/or in their capacity as directors of the companies comprising the Group
during the year.

No director of the Company waived any emolument during the year (2013:
nil).

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT

ERATHFMERNFRNZFES
NEESEAAEEREN TR
S REEERAEER TR
EEmMsOHEAREYNENEHR
B -

RERN ARAEEHERELE
{AI%E (20135 : &) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24  DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont d)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 3| December 2014, the five individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Group include 3 directors (2013: 3
directors), whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.

The emoluments paid to the remaining 2 (2013: 2) individuals are as follows:

24

e U WmER R

ESREREEEFME)

by ILEBEFMAL
BZE014FNANBILFE A%
EREGEeFMATEEIRES
(013F : 3BEF) - FENZM
BRI AHT o gR R 2E (2013
F:28) EAZAOFBT -

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

T TR

Salary and allowances e KoERL 4392 3,706
Discretionary bonus BYBIEAL 1,255 2,220
Pension -defined contribution plans BRe — ERENEE 34 30
5,68l 5,956

The emoluments of the remaining 2 (2013: 2) individuals for the year ended

31 December 2014 fell within the following bands:

BHZEW0H4ENA3NBIEEHH
T24 (20134 1 24%) ALTHE
BNFLATEE -

2014 2013

Emolument bands (in HK$) &R (LABTa)
HK$500,001 - HK$ 1,000,000 500,003 7.2 1 00000055 7T

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000

1,500,001 7 7L 22,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001/ 7 £2,500,000/4 7T
2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T
3,500,001 7T 24,000,000/ 7T
4,000,001 77T 24,500,000/ 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the

directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2013: nil).

RER  AEEBERTNEEL T A
BB MA TS A EMFMERMAKR
SESRMARE B2 8RB IERBER
e (2013F : &) o
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mEMBHRERME

24

152

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont d)

(©

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT

Senior management (excluding directors)

The emoluments of the 7 (2013: 8) senior management for the year ended

31 December 2014 fell within the following bands:

24

ESREREEEFME)

() EREEE(FERFES)
BZE2014F 12831 BIEFENTS
(20135 : 8%) RAREEENH
BN FLAT R

2014 2013
Emolument bands (in HK$) &R (LABTa)
Below HK$500,001 D H500001 7T 2 3
HK$500,001 - HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 72 1,000,000757T 2 3
HK$1,000,001- HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7L E 1,500,000 7T 2 |

HK$1,500,001- HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001- HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001- HK$4,500,000

1,500,001/ 7T 22,000,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T
3,500,001 7 7T 24,000,000/ 7T
4,000,001 78 7T, 24,500,000/ 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the

senior management as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or

as compensation for loss of office (2013: nil).

RER - AEERERETASREER
K ERFHMERMAREEH AR
SEKRMNEBRIEDRERME (2013
FE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e U WmER R

FINANCE INCOME, NET 25 HMERA FE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr TAT
Finance income MERA
Interest income on short-term bank deposits FEISRI TN B 578 559
Finance costs MEMA
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITREFFEFRAX (342) (M
Interest expense on finance lease liabilities HEMEREMNEHAX (15) )
(357) )
Finance income, net BMEWA - FH 221 557
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 26 FEHAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profits during the year.

Macau complementary tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from 3% to
9% on the taxable income above MOP32,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,000) but below MOP300,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$291,000),
and thereafter at a fixed rate of 12%. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
a special complementary tax incentive was provided to the effect that tax free
income threshold was increased from MOP32,000 to MOP300,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$31,000 to HK$291,000) and thereafter at a fixed rate
of 12%. For the year ended 31 December 2013, a special complementary tax
incentive was provided to the effect that tax free income threshold was increased
from MOP32,000 to MOP200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$31,000 to
HK$194,000) with the next MOP 100,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$97,000)
of profit being taxed at a fixed rate of 9% and thereafter at a fixed rate of 12%.

RE R E BRSBTS R B
FIZ165% (2013¢F: 165%) HOBIREHE
BlE -

SRPIR IR T3 M 32,0008 T (48
BAI31,000/87T) 1B1KH 3000002
Tt (FEERKI291,00087T) KR
WA 3% B 9%H) R Bl R i -
ME&2BAIREER X 2%MT - &
E014F12A3 BEFERERAIFT
BiEZE) - R H32,000RFTTIEE
300,0002F7T (FHERAI31,0008TE
291,000/87T) - EEEEETE 2%
B o BZE2013F 12831 B IEFERER
R R 22 - H5ERBIM AR R %E
F132,0002F9 7T 3 %£200,0002F1 7T (48
BEH4I31,0008TTE 1940008 7L) + &
1%100,0002FF 7T (AAE R 497,000
TT) BV FERRT I AR E T B R 9% MY -
7S R ERTOE N AR EE B E
12964078
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

26  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd) 26 FIEREX(ZE)
The Group's operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC corporate income AEBERREA ML L AN T E R
tax. The standard PRC corporate income tax rate is 25%. Preferential rate of 5% XN BERBECEMGEHER
withholding income tax is also imposed on dividends relating to any profits eamed 25% ° B20085F | A1 B8 « A B
by the PRC incorporated subsidiaries commencing from | January 2008 when B 32 BB 88 A 8] BT BB A (4] g ) A 1)
distributed to the holding companies incorporated in Hong Kong. BRI ERA IR R EER

5 %H) BB K BATRINFAEH

Taxation outside Hong Kong and Mainland China has been calculated on the B8 KB B A SN T TE TR R FF A
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the it ERDRME AR EE KL MERR
countries in which the Group operates. RITMEGTE »
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Current taxation RiTHA
Hong Kong profits tax BAEMEH 2,638 1993
Taxation outside Hong Kong BAFEINGIE
Macau P 3,358 12817
Mainland China T BN 1,835 2,860
Others Hitr 2310 298
7,503 15975
Under /(Over)-provision in prior years BEFERETE (BEEE)
Hong Kong profits tax BBNEH (64) (78)
Taxation outside Hong Kong BABBEIIIE 1,487 —
1,423 (78)
Deferred income tax (Note 9) PRSBURIERIA (Mi5E9) (1,613) 490
9,951 18,380
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

26

The taxation on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount

that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

companies comprising the Group as follows:

e U WmER R

FREBAX(E)
ARERRRTANG FIT R R RNRAE
BARAEEE N DEEN IS
MEFENERBBZEEMNT

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR
Profit before income tax BT SAT A A 22,834 111,086
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to profits HERANEMB R RDET
of the respective subsidiaries BB RSt BRI 3,309 14,644
Tax losses for which no deferred RIS
income tax asset was recognised BEMNTIEEE 4,827 2,621
Income not subject to tax BEBBHA (497) (181
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose ORI 1,909 L7
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses B A 2 AR R TIBEE (1,196) (122)
Under /(over)-provision in prior years BAFEREBETR/ (BERE) 1,423 (78)
Withholding tax on unremitted eamnings of B A B R R
subsidiaries in Mainland China RIE B R FEBL 176 379
Income tax expense PSR 9,951 18,380
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 27 EEFEAEEET

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company to the extent of approximately HK$82,148,000 (2013:

HK$173,685,000).

AABEREE ABEGFRAR A
EIRE AL - 482,148,000 7T (2013
F 1 |73,685000087T) ©
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28

156

EARNINGS PER SHARE

@)

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year

attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year
ended 3| December 2014 and 2013 used to calculate the basic earnings per
share has accounted for the share subdivision which was effective 24 May

2013. Each share of the Company of HK$0.01 per share was subdivided into

two shares of HK$0.005 per share.

28

BREF

(2)

E- %N

BREXBN MR RERR
BN F R MR AF A%
TE B INEFHEE MR

=]
=4 e

HZE2014F %2013F 1283181
FE - ARG ESRERBTK
BETETARNNETHHER
FEB2013%5 A24 B A MEBR D IR
M SREEIBTZBRMIF
4RI IR EE0.0058 7T ©

2014 2013
Profit attributable to equity holders of ARBIERFAA
the Company (HK$000) e &N (F87T) 13,117 93,050
Weighted average number of ordinary BT B
shares in issue (in thousand shares) MEFHE (FAR) 800,469 800,000
Basic earnings per share BREKREN
(HK cents per share) (BREN) .64 11.63




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Contd)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has dilutive potential ordinary
shares due to share options. The calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as
the average annual market share price of the Company's shares) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options. The number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the

share options.

e U WmER R

28 BREFE)

(b)

BE
BREERN BB BRI
ABEEEEBRAERTE
SNEBACE BT B B
e ARBRERENALEE
EELBK - BB EET K
AFE (BRAXERDZFEF
BRE) RBZBRHEE - R
BRITEEBEMMNRERECZE
WERE - DlstERGEH 2k
8B K RRREATEREREN
BEITZBINBBELR -

2014 2013

Profit attributable to equity holders RRRIERFAA

of the Company (HK$'000) EitaF (F&T) 13,117 93,050
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITEERD

shares in issue (in thousand shares) MEFHE (FR) 800,469 800,000
Adjustment for share options FLBMAE E L AR 1,925 -
Weighted average number of ordinary St EEREERN

shares for diluted eamings per share TmARE) eI

(in thousands shares) (Fh%) 802,394 800,000
Diluted earnings per share FREERN (BRE)

(HK cents per share) 1.63 [1.63
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2013 is the mMRERENEE LT BRARE

same as the basic earnings per share as the potential ordinary shares due to

share options are anti-dilutive but the potential ordinary shares due to share

options are dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2014.

B BREE2014F1283181F

FEERENEEERRAE
B MEZE2013F12A3181EF
FHERESRBNEGRERR
MIAER
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29

158

DIVIDENDS 29 RE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TET
Interim dividends declared and paid by the Company 22 B 5 ik &K< 89 A H3f% B
— HKO.7 cents per share (2013: HK2.8 cents —8R07AEWQOIZE : Bk
per share) (Note (a)) 2878 (FI5E () 5,600 22,400
Special dividends declared by the Company ARNEEEIRMERIR S
— HKI5 cents per share (Note (b)) ~BR15BM (K b)) 121,029 —
Final dividends declared and paid by the Company ~ AR F]E B & KK AR 2% &
— Nil (2013: HK1.8 cents per share) (Note (c)) —Z(2013F : Bk 1.851L)
GEICY — 14,400
Special dividends declared and paid by the Company A2 7] E & & K& A5 Rl A% &
—HKI5 cents per share (Note (d)) -5 15 (HE () — 120,000
126,629 156,800

The final and special dividends declared after the year ended 31 December 2013

have not been recognised as liabilities as at 31 December 201 3.

Notes:

(@)  Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of HKO.7 cents per share
amounting to HKD$5,600,000 was proposed by the board of Directors on 25 August
2014.

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of HK2.8 cents per share
amounting to HK$22,400,000 was proposed by the board of directors on 26 August
2013.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT

REBZEW3FNANBILIFEEER
B R ER R 5 BRI R A 2013 4
12A3I HHEE -

Byt -

(@) EZERWI4FSABARHEREE
2014F 12831 BILEEFHKREFR
0.7/ - #%85,600,0007 T °

BEER0IE8AUBERHETREE
2013F1N2A3IAEEEFHESER
28741l 48%822,400,0008 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29  DIVIDENDS (Contd)

(b)

Special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of HKI5 cents per share
amounting to HK$121,029,000 was proposed by the board of Directors on 27
November 2014. The payment of this special dividend is out of the retained earnings
and share premium account pursuant to Articles 136 and |37 of the Article of

Association and in accordance with the Cayman Companies Law.

No final dividend for the year ended 3| December 2014 was proposed by the board
of Directors on 25 March 2015.

Final dividend for the year ended 3| December 2013 of HKI.8 cents per share
amounting to HK$14,400,000 is based on 800,000,000 shares in issue as at 3|
December 2013 and was proposed by the board of Directors on |8 March 2014.

Special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of HKI5 cents per share
amounting to HK$120,000,000 was proposed by the board of Directors on 18 March
2014.

A MR MR

29 KRE(#E)

()

EEER014F 11 A7BREERE
EWH4FNABLEFERIKRES
B 1Sl - #8%8121,029,0005 7T ° It
BRRERBRASHEAREAREE
RAAIE 136 % 137 1R IER B B A ] %
EERI o

EZEM0I5FIABATERREH
EI4F AN BIEFEREKE -

BEEQN2014F38I8ERES RN
2013512 A31 HE #417#/9800,000,000
BRI Rt EREENEZ2013F12A
JIBEFERBREGMRSHEM - 2
%814,400,00078 7T ©

EZEN0I4F3IRI8HERTREZR
2013F12A3IBIEEERHRIREER
ISl » #8%8120,000,000/ 7T °

159

Annual Report £ # 2014



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

30

160

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

@)

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated from

30

() BHEHARNESEXBRER

operations LFEYER
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TRT
Profit before income tax BR PG BAT &R A 22,834 111,086
Adjustments for: FATEEHE
Interest income FSUWA (578) (559)
Interest expense FERZ 357 2
Depreciation nE 3,361 2,564
Amortisation B 359 —
Gains on disposal of property, HEWE  BE REEkRE
plant and equipment (420) (1
Share of losses of associated companies (LB RRIEE 664 —
Impairment on property, plant and equipment ¥1%  BiE M &R E 1,061 —
Impairment on goodwill HERE 557 -
Bad debts written off SRR 3 — 234
Share-based payment PARR 10 A ERE A (3% 939 1,425
Gain on remeasuring previously held interest  FAUKEE B EFT5TE 2 AIH ASR Vietnamn
in ASR Vietnam on acquisition ARz Em e (134) —
Gain on acquisition of AOE-TKW India Y88 AOE-TKW India (2 — (874)
29,000 113,877
Changes in working capital: LEEREE
Trade receivables BHRWHE (11,898) (28,709)
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T FUE « £ & R EMEUKFIE (3,295) 3,692
Pledged deposits EERER 19,915 (1,997)
Trade payables BHRNFE 77,703 20937
Other payables and accruals Hio A FIEKESER 6,282 11,897
Cash generated from operations REZLBFERS 117,707 119,697




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRERME

30 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Contd) 30 HEBRERERME(E)

RGEERERERA  HEWE
BERRENFAERARSE

(b)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of (b)

property, plant and equipment comprise:

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

T Fib 7t

Net book amount (Note 5) REFEPES) 1,195 20
Gains on disposal of property, HEME - BE K

plant and equipment (Note 21) s (M 21) 420

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - KR K

plant and equipment RBENBFE 1,615 21

Non-cash transactions () #ELXS

() During the year ended 31 December 2014, addition of property, () REE014F 128318
plant and equipment amounting to HK$ 1,002,000 was reclassified FE - ABEWE BERS
from non-current prepayments without any cash paid. 11,002,000 TARFERENTE

NFEEHDEMEK -
WEZRAEMRE -

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2014, finance lease arrangement (i) MEZE04F12A318IE
was entered into by the Group for acquisition of property, plant and FE - REE K 287,000
equipment amounting to HK$287,000 without any cash paid. BILRME - BERRER

VBEHELRY  ERTE
XHERBRE o
(i)~ During the year ended 3| December 2014, addition of intangible (iy B B E2014F 1248318

assets to HK$1,548,000 was reclassified from non-current

prepayments without any cash paid.

tFEE AEEWEEZR
1,548,000 7% 7T FEBD EA TR
HBEEHDEME  EHh
ESHEMEE -
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31

32

162

COMMITMENTS 31 AR
Operating lease commitments ReHERE
The Group leases certain office premises under non-cancellable operating lease AEBRBETAHECEHERZEHE
agreements, ETHREYE -
The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AEERZETAIHELEHERETH
operating leases are as follows: RRGEHERFTETMAT
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Not later than | year —FLA 8,559 8,832
Later than | year and not later than 5 year —FUERFURA 5,094 10,730
13,653 19,562
BUSINESS COMBINATION 32 EBEH

On 6 March 2014, the Group acquired 49% equity interest of ASR Vietnam
from Mr. Nguyen Minh Tam, an independent third party at a consideration of
HK$588,000. The investment was accounted for as investment in an associate
under equity method (Note 19(a)). At time of the original acquisition, foreign
investors were precluded from acquiring a majority interest in Vietnam companies.
However, this restriction was removed during the second acquisition. Subsequently
on 12 August 2014, the Group acquired an additional 50% equity interest of ASR
Vietnam from Mr. Nguyen Minh Tam at a consideration of HK$600,000 and ASR
Vietnam became a subsidiary of the Group. The acquisition is expected to increase

the Group's market share in Vietnam and reduce cost through economies of scale.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT

RNI4F3R6H A& B URE
588,000 % 7T 7 8 1 £ = 77 Nguyen Minh
Tam % 4 W BE ASR Vietnam 49% ik 1 -
ZEREREREZTARBENARE
(FE5E 19@)) - RANIEHUBET - SNEIIR &
EMnFWEMEARAD ER - R
e ZRBIRE R B R B - BE
BR0I4FIANE REBURE
600,000 &L [A Nguyen Minh Tam 5t 4 1%
INULEE ASR Vietnam ) 50% 2 + K ASR
Vietnam X AR LB B AR - ZWEE
HENAEEEHENTSHERER
B ER DR o



32

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e U WmER R

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Contd) RN EBEH(E)
The group recognised a gain of HK$ 134,000 as a result of remeasuring at fair value FRALEBEEHAFERNEBA MR
its 49% equity interest in ASR Vietnam held before the business combination. B ASR Vietnam K] 49% #z » A EBRER
The gain is included in “other losses, net” (Note 21) in the Group's consolidated Ll&z 134,000 7T © B 220145 12 A3
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2014. CRREFAREEGES2EKAR
E’Jfﬁf’@l@ﬂﬁi R I(HEE21) -
Directors do not consider these two acquisitions as linked transaction and therefore EERRZMBENERERABRS A
they are accounted for separately. WREDFEIIE o
On 10 July 2014, the Group acquired 99% of Star Cargo Vietnam for HK$ 1,188,000 R2014F7H 108 - AL E 1,188,000
from Mr. Nguyen Minh Tam. Star Cargo Vietnam has not yet commenced # T A Nguyen Minh Tam 5% 4 U B Star
operations as at date of acquisition. Goodwill of HK$ 13,000 arising from acquisition Cargo Vietnam 99%# % © Star Cargo
of Star Cargo Vietnam is recorded. Vietnam AU EE B B R 16 218 - Wi
Star Cargo Vietnam EEA£RIPEE 13,0004
TLEMER
The following table summarises the consideration paid for the issued share capital T & Bt 3EASR Vietnam 2 Star Cargo
of ASR Vietnam and Star Cargo Vietnam and the fair value of assets acquired and Vietnam B B 1TIRA TR B RS
liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. AHBRMMEBEEE RAEZRENA
AEE-
HK$000
TER
Consideration paid by cash MRETHRE 1,788
Previously-held interests re- measured at fair value BRARBEENIELAFAER 588
Total consideration mRE 2,376
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32

164

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Contd)

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

E¥Bast(#E)
FBETRNEER iRERENRER
£

HK$’000

TERT

Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 2011
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 47
Trade receivables B SRR 101
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BAFIE - Be REMERFIE 205
Trade payables EHRENNIE (151)
Other payables and accruals Hih e 3B ket B R (449)
Total identifiable net assets AIERFEERE |,764
Non-controlling interests R ER (18)
Goodwil kS 630
2,376

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the consideration paid for acquisition

of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired was comprised of:

HeRERERT RUEMELARE
NREEHRAERS) B

HK$'000

THER

Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrERE R EEEY 2011
Consideration paid by cash NReTHRE (1,788)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WHERBRR - KHBRAERE 223

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT



32

33

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Contd)

There was no material acquisition-related cost incurred in relation to the acquisition
of ASR Vietnam and Star Cargo Vietnam.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement since 12 August 2014
contributed by ASR Vietnam was HK$194,000. ASR Vietnam also contributed a
loss of HK$ 150,000 over the same period.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement since 10 July 2014
contributed by Star Cargo Vietnam was nil. Star Cargo Vietnam also contributed no

profit or loss over the same period.

Had ASR Vietnam been consolidated from | January 2014, the consolidated
income statement would show pro-forma revenue of HK$907,792,000 and a profit
of HK$12,536,000.

Had Star Cargo Vietnam been consolidated from | January 2014, the consolidated
income statement would show pro-forma revenue of HK$907,473,000 and a profit
of HK$12,884,000.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties refer to entities in which the Company has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions, or directors or officers of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

32

33

e U WmER R

EBastE)
1 5t Y BB ASR Vietnam R Star Cargo
Vietnam 4 E AW RN

E2014F88 RATARERERE
ASR Vietnam & Bt /) I 2 /4 194,000 7%
JL o [ B> ASR Vietnam 71 & 4 5 B
150,000 T °

B2014F7R10RE AR RERRE -
Star Cargo Vietnam %R ATHTT ©
[FIH + Star Cargo Vietnam W% B BAME(
N R o

BE ASR Vietnam B 201449 | A | BEE
EHAIR - Bl S Em R WIEETIRA#
£5907,792,0007 7T & i # 12,536,000
ﬁ o

&% Star Cargo Vietnam B 20144 | A 1 B
REEHAR  AlEeRaRaETK
A5 907,473,000 7 7T K i 71 12,884,000
BT

HMLRS

IR T 5 AN R BIRE S B R SR IR I A
B HEB RO REERKEE
BEBYENNER  SEARFRE
MBARNEEARARE -
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33

166

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Except as disclosed elsewhere, during the year, the following transactions were

carried out with related parties:

@

(©

33

BMLRE (&)

SREMEEMEEESN
R 5 R T HETT

RER - AT

Transaction @ RZ
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Sales to an associated company: m— R R RHE
ASR Vietnam ASR Vietnam 146 —
Cost of services paid to an associated company: 1) — 5 = 22 8] 32 (AR AA -
ASR Vietnam ASR Vietnam 6 —

Sales made and purchase to ASR Vietnam throughout the period from 6
March 2014 to 12 August 2014 with reference to market rates of similar
services before ASR Vietnam being a subsidiary of the Group.

20143 A6 H 220148 A 12H
HARAMAASR Vietnam{EH V85 & I
BE P2 ZASR Vietnam A A
SEZHMBRRAEURSZT

GBS -
Balance (b) #k
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Loan to an associated company m—EBE R FELZER
(note 19(b)) (FEEE19()) 3,071 3,600

Key management compensation
Key management includes Directors and senior management. The

compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is

() FEEBEASHM

IRERABEREZNAAE
HE - pEERBEHLENE

shown below: LEEABHNEHMHIRNOT
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET
Salaries, bonus and other welfares e AR EMER] 23,191 15,564
Pension - defined contribution plans BRE - ERENGE 274 266
23,465 15,830

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT
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35

36

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK GUARANTEES

Certain commercial banks have provided bank guarantees to certain airlines
and integrated carriers as securities for purchase of cargo space, under banking
facilities provided to certain subsidiaries of the Company. At 31 December 2014,
the guarantees granted amounted to approximately HK$80,087,000 (2013:
HK$70,456,000) (Note 18). These banking facilities are secured by corporate

guarantees provided by the Company and its certain subsidiaries.

These bank guarantees are mainly denominated in HK$ and US$.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

During the year, ASR Victory is the immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Group. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on |2 January 2015, ASR Victory,
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sumy, Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki
transferred in aggregate 560,000,000 shares, representing approximately 69.4% of
the entire issued share capital of the Company, to Hollyview International Limited,
Excellent Success Asia Limited, Mass Talent Financial Limited and Mr. Sang Kanggiao
(collectively the “Joint Offerors”). After the share transfer, the Joint Offerors

become the ultimate controlling shareholders of the Group.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On 23 March 2015, ASR Victory, a shareholder of the Group, together with the

Guarantors, entered into a deed of funding undertakings to provide sufficient
funding to the Group in the event that its existing banking facilities are voided,
cancelled, terminated, reduced or not renewed. The funding notice shall be issued
by the Company to ASR Victory and the Guarantors within |2 months of the date
of the deed. The total amount of funding undertaking shall not exceed HK$120

million.

The funding when provided shall be treated as an advance to Company and be
repayable by the Company at a suitable time to be agreed among the Company,
ASR Victory and the Guarantors, but in any event shall be fully repaid on or before
24 months from the date of the deed.

34

35

36

e U WmER R

RITER

BERE T AREE THE R RRRIT
BE ETEERTEAETMZERR
Rige R B ARBRBTER  ERE
BEEMBRANER - R20145F 12831

7T (20134 : 70,456,000/87C) (Misk
18) ~ ZEBITHMERARAREET
BB A AR A A RIEREER

ZEPITRREENETRETLAE

RAERAT

RER + ASR Victory BAR R Z EE R
RERERAR - REEEBERAS
BI20154F 1 B 128 » ASR Victory * R&
Rk BELEMEERBERTES
H#£560,000,0008 8% (EARE]
2EEBEITRALI69.4%) T Hollyview
International Limited * B & a5 MBR D
@) ~ Mass Talent Financial Limited 2 52 &
BEE (B8 [HEENF] ) - Rk
nNEEE  BEBENTRATER 2 &
ERVERRIRCR.

#ERKSEHE

R2015F3A238 + REE ZRFASR
Victory ZRIER AFT LB @ AHRE -
MASERBRITRER K - BUE
B RO EES - BmASER
HAERES - FEBEARREAH 2
AAMRASR Victory R ERAZE L E 2B
A o B Gk A FE R 120,000,000
5 0

BRANBREESR BEAAKX
NERMBK - WAHERAKRF - ASR
Victory R FER ATE 2 & R A i AR
NRIMEE - BEmIAERZE AR
4ERAS AIEHER -
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GLOSSARY

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have

the following meanings.

"AQE Freight”  means

"AQE Freight means
(Shenzhen)”

"“ASR Victory" means

"BAHT" means

"Board" means

“Company” means

AOE Freight (HK) Limited (/¥ 5@ B2 A)), a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 30 April
1991 and wholly-owned by ASR Limited

AOE Freight (Shenzhen) Limited (%)% BIfR 5iE N 1E
(FYNBR AR, a limited liability company incorporated
in PRC on 18 November 2004 and wholly-owned by
AOE Freight

ASR Victory Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 3 June 201 I,
being 33.33% owned by Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny, Mr. Mak
Chi Hung, Richard and Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki

Thai Baht, the lawful currency of Thailand
the board of Directors of the Company

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited, an exempted company
incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the
Cayman Islands and the Shares of which are listed on the

Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

1 68 ASR Logistics Holdings Limited ¢ #¥¥HRERER QT

WARFERA - BIEXEREME TATIHE

SERNTRE -

[HFEE]

[ASR
Victory

[ %4k |
[E%g]
VNGl

18

15

15

BEEEERRAR —
R 1991F4A30H &
BEBAMKINERA
Al AASR Limited 812
VNG

BAEREERECOR
YIBRAR] - —fERAAF
Il A 1881 B it Ak
VR ARD RN RS F
HEMNEENT

ASR Victory Limited,
—RR 2011 F6 A3RER
El g3kl Al
BERRE BARERE
B BEERERER
P& B TR 33.33%

REEE EHRHK
KAREZS

BEDRERARA
A —EREREHRS
EREMKLNERR
BRRAR ARORE
BER IR ET



"Director(s)"
“EUR"

"GBP"

“Group”

"GSA"

“HK$" and
"HK cents”

"Hong Kong"

“INR"

Y

"KHR"

"KOR"

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Main Board”

“Model Code”

"MOP"

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

the director(s) of the Company
Euro, the lawful currency of Europe

Great British Pound, the lawful currency of United
Kingdom

the Company and its subsidiaries

a general sales agent appointed by an airline which
typically authorises such a general sales agent to exclusively
represents the airline in a region or territory in relation to
that airline in particular segment of business e.g. air cargo
space or passengers tickets

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful
currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Indian Rupee, the lawful currency of India

Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of Japan

Cambodian Riel, the lawful currency of Cambodia

Korea Won, the lawful currency of Korea

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange

Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the stock market operated by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, which excludes the Growth Enterprise Market
and the options market

model code for securities by directors of listed issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

Macau Patacas, the lawful currency of Macau

(&%) 15
(BT ) 15
[54% | 18
[A%E &
[BHE 15
]

[Erlk 5
(7l

(&%) 15
[BEEL] f§
[BE] 15
(SRR &
[87) 18
[EHHRRI 5
[P 15
E 15
[F25rRl) $5
[RFMT)

GLOSSARY

AREES
BN EE S BT

REZEERES

ARERAKEAT

MERAZAEMBEE
R - feprEst—ER
13 ot 13 X R A R 4 8H
EREBRREMZEAR
ANBEELS  mE
BEMBUSEE

%/%/fﬁ(bﬁg/%ﬂi&/%
1l

FEEBFRITHE
HEETERHNEEL
AREEERAE

RERETEBRAE
il ]

BEZEERET

EEBMIMESLTH
El

BRI R TER R
mMAEBBIMEENRK
ZMiG TREAER
KT 5
FAR M S I0FTE b
MEITAESETES
T HHIZEST A
BFEEEERMT

Annual Report £ & 2014 1 69



GLOSSARY

S

“NTD"

“PRC"

"“Prospectus”
"Reorganisation”

“RM
"RMB"

“RP"

"SFO”

"SGD”
“Share(s)"

“Shareholder(s)"

“Stock Exchange”

“US$”

170

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

Taiwan dollars, the lawful currency of Taiwan

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose
of this annual report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

the Company's prospectus dated 30 December 201 |

the corporate reorganisation of our Group conducted in
preparation for the Listing

Malaysia Ringgit, the lawful currency of Malaysia

Renminbi, the lawful currency of PRC

Indonesian Rupiah, the lawful currency of Indonesia
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the

Laws of Hong Kong) as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

Singapore dollars, the lawful currency of Singapore

share(s) of HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the
Company

shareholder(s) of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

United States Dollar, the lawful currency of the United
States of America
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